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Profile

Sinece its establishment in 1947, Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd. has concentrated on accumulating

industry-leading technological expertise as a specialist in steel tube production. The
Company’s progress has been underpinned by R&D focused on enhancing this core
competence.

Maruichi Steel Tube’s network in Japan provides nationwide coverage, including
affiliated companies; and manufactuting plants and logistics centers operating in
close proximity based on a business model emphasizing demand-driven production
systems. Overscas, the Company has been developing a global business by establishing
manufacturing companies in the United States, Mexico, Indonesia, China, Vietnam and
India. Additionally, through persistent efforts to increase the efficiency of manufacturing
and logistics, the Company is sharpening the cost competitiveness of products.

Convinced that fulfiliment of corporate social responsibility is both a duty and a vital
ingredient of business success, Maruichi Steel Tube has put in place cotporate governance
systems based on the Companies Act. Also, the Company is strengthening its inrernal

control in view of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, Japar's version of the U.S.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act (SOX), which accords the prime importance to internal control of

financial reporting and is applicable to accounting periods started from April 2008 onward.

Maruichi Steel Tube’s shares, listed on the first sections of the Tokyo Stock Exchange,

have been included in the Nikkei 500 Average since April 2001, underlining the Company’s

importance.
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Disclaimer Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Plans, strategies and other forward-looking statements about corporate performance published in this report
are not based on information concerning events in the past, but are projections based on assumptions and
convictions of company executives in light of currently available information. It should be noted that risks and
uncertainties are associated with any forward-looking statements included in this report.
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. . . . . Maruichi Seeel Tube Lid, and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Highlights - Yeuss ended Masch 31
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Note)
2013 2014 2015 2015

For the year:

Net sales ¥117,688 ¥136,548 ¥152,668 $1,270,435
Operating income 15,413 20,080 17,734 147,578
Income before income taxes and minority interests 18,496 22,274 15,331 127,578
Net income 10,618 13,748 9,300 77,390
At year-end:

Total assets ¥271,236 ¥300,482 ¥321,452 $2,674,978
Net assets 225,257 242,520 254,374 2,116,789

Per share (Yen/U.S. dollars): ;
Net income ¥ 125.00 ¥ 162.25 ¥ 109.76 $ 0.91
Net assets 2,556.39 2,742.10 2,875.53 ’ 23.93

Ratio (%):
Return on assets (ROA) 4.1 4.8 3.0
Return on equity (ROE) 5.0 6.1 3.9

Note: U.S. dollar amounts have been converted for convenience only at the rate of ¥000.00=US$1, the rate of exchange on March 31, 2015.

Net Sales et Income Total Assets tcft scalc) et Assets (eft scale)
#ROA (righe scaley #8 ROE (right scale)
(Millions of yen) {Millions of yen) {Millions of yen) (%) (Millions of yen} (%)
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Consolidated Financial Highlights
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Messages from the Management

Hiroyuki Suzuki :7 Yoshinori Yoshimura

Representative Director, Representartive Director,
Chairman & CEO President & COO

As a leading steel tube company,
we will accelevate expansion of
our business arveas, especially at overseas.

. Messages from the Management
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The Maruichi Steel Tube Group has grown into a corporate organization considered by both shareholders and business associates
to be an excellent corporation.

This was realized through the synergistic effects such as (1) independent and self-driven business, (2) a positive financial base,
(3) demand driven production system, and (4) increase of value-added products.

Maruichi Steel Tube believes that its mission is to continuously developing these characteristics.

It is expected that the environment surrounding the steel industry will continue to grow harsh in the future due to the severe
economic climate, but the company must resiliently grow and develop in spite of this situation. In order to quickly resolve these
difficulties and make further leaps, the company will:

(1) Aggressively respond to more sophisticated and diverse customer needs
(2} Create new demand for steel tubes by introducing new and unique Maruichi Steel Tube products
(3) Realize the Group's growth and expansion by daveloping overseas businesses
{4) Further improve shareholder value by continually improving business results,
Maruichi Steel Tube intends to do its absolute best to live up to shareholder expectations.
The company is also keenly aware thart it must work towards the following priority goals on a daily basis.

(1) sales promotion, new product development, improvement of research and technical abilities
(2) Increasing competitiveness by further reducing costs
{3) Achieving a high standard quality level that will satisfy customers
fi} Enacting our environmental management system (15014001}
{5} Improving each individual employee’s abilities and setting challenging goals
{6) Eliminating injurfes and accidents

i

Maruichi Steel Tube will aim to become an even stronger company by diligently answering these challenges daily.
The company sincerely asks everyone to continue giving their support, their advice and their cooperation.

Review of Operations

In the fiscal year ended March 2015 (FY2015), the Japanese economy witnessed a recovery in corporate carnings and
improvement of the employment situation against the backdrop of government economic policies, depreciation of the yen, and
the decline in crude oil prices. Although the economy remained on a trend of gradual recovery, personal consumption was weak
due to the impact of rising prices caused by depreciation of the yen and an increase of the consumption tax rate. On the other
hand, the outlook for the global economy continued to be uncertain due to concerns over deflation in European economies and
the slowdown in China’s economic growth in Asia, despite the strong business performance of companies and personal
consumption of the U.S. economy.

In the domestic steel manufacturing industry, due to the impact of the downturn in reaction to the increase of consumption
tax rate, demand from automobile manufacturers and demand for products used in construction were sluggish. As a result, crude
steel output in FY2015 declined to 109.85 million tons (decreased by 1.5% from the previous fiscal year).

JAPAN

Turning to the Maruichi Group’s business in Japan, due to the impact of the increase of consumption tax rare, demand for steel
tubes for construction and civil engineering and demand from automobile manufacturers were sluggish, which account for a
large portion of the Group’s earnings, and demand for steel tubes used in automobiles also slowed down. Therefore, annual sales
volume increased slightly from the previous fiscal year. In terms of pipe product prices, we have made efforts to raise prices by
shifting the increased costs of raw materials stemming from the increase in the price of coils onto our product prices, but
macerial costs have remained high. As a result of the above, the Group’s business in Japan had net sales of ¥100,172 million and
segment profit of ¥17,906 million.

NORTH AMERICA
Turning to the Group’s business in North America, we have newly consolidated MARUICHIMEX S.A. de C.V. (Maruichimex),
which produces steel tubes for automobiles in Mexico, and acquired Evraz Oregon Steel’s structural tube division through
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Maruichi Oregon Steel Tube, LLC (MOST), also adding MOST 1o our scope of consolidation at the end of the fiscal year. Net
sales rose to ¥21,684 million, due ro an increase in sales volume at Maruichi Leavitt Pipe & Tube, LLC (Leavitt), but segment
loss totaled ¥223 million due to a delay in the operation of API equipment.

ASIA

Turning to the Group’s business in Asia, net sales increased to ¥30,812 million due to increased sales volume resulting from the
operation of new facilities at Maruichi Sun Steel Joint Stock Company (SUNSCO) in Vietnam. However, due to market decline
caused by intensified price competition for steel products in China and Southeast Asia, and the increased cost burden including
amortization expenses, segment loss of ¥46 million was recorded.

With regard to the Group production facilities, we have been coping with increased electricity prices by starting to sell
electric power from the additional solar power generating equipment in the Sakai Plant from July of last year, addicional solar
power generating equipment in the Tokyo Plant and solar power generating equipment in the Sakai Pole Plant from August of
last year, and solar power generating equipment in the Nagoya Plant and the Tomakomai Plant from February of this year,

Meanwhile, overseas, we established Alphametal Mexico S.A. de C.V. (Alphamex) conducting steel tube processing
business for automotive parts manufacturers, which commenced production in August of last year. In addition, we completed
construction and commenced operation of Bangalore Plant of Maruichi Kuma Steel Tube Private Limited (KUMA) in India in
February of this year, and Maruichimex’s No. 2 Plant in Mexico in March of this year. Furthermore, Maruichimex acquired land
in an industrial park in Queretaro State in January of this year.

As menrioned above, consolidated net sales in FY2015 increased by 11.8% from the previous fiscal year to ¥152,668 million,
consolidated operating income decreased by 11.7% from the previous fiscal year to ¥17,734 million, consolidated ordinary
income decreased by 11.8% from the previous fiscal year to ¥19,919 million, and consolidated net income decreased by 32.4%
from the previous fiscal year to ¥9,300 million.

Business Strategy
L.

Looking into the future, the Japanese economy is expected to recover gradually due to positive sentiments toward investment
by companies, improvement of the employment environment and income situation and positive effects on corporations and
household budgets from decrease of crude oil prices, backed by factors including the government’s economic policies. However,
economic trends both inside and ourtside Japan is expected to remain uncertain due to concern over slowdown of growth in
China and other emerging economies, despite the fact that the strong American economy is leading the global economy.

JAPAN

With regard to domestic business operations, while the market of steel materials is currently unsatisfactory due to uncerrainties
of the economic outlook, the demand for steel tubes for construction and civil engineering and the demand for steel tubes for
users driven by depreciation of the yen are expected to improve from autumn. Meanwhile, we are working toward the recovery
of the spread, which has been tightened from last year due to the persistently high price of coils. In terms of production, we will
continue to focus on cost reduction through efforts such as improvement of productivity and efficiency by integrating the Osaka
Plant into the Sakai Plant and updating equipment in domestic plants.

NORTH AMERICA

Turning to the Group’s business in North America, although prices of steel materials market have continued to decline from the
beginning of the year to date, Leavite will work to respond to demand for products for construction, automobiles and energy
field by utilizing enhanced equipment to maximum effect, and strive to expand sales and improve profitability by enhancing its
sales force for users. Meanwhile, in the northwest of the United States, we will strive to get MOST, which acquired steel tube
business division in the northwest, on track early and develop our supply system in the region, to achieve sales expansion in the
northwest of the United States and the west of Canada. In Mexico, through the enhanced production capacity of Maruichimex
thanks to the No. 2 Plant whose construction has been completed, Maruichimex will proactively respond to demand for
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steel tubes for automobiles, which is expected to continue to rise in the future. In addition, it will strive to expand supply in
cooperation with Alphamex which engages in processing automobile pipes.

ASIA

Turning to the Group’s business in Asia, SUNSCO in Vietnam will expand its share of and set prices commensurate with cost for
high quality products produced with its new facilities such as 16-inch mill with large investments completed, CGL No. 2, CCL
No. 2, 2-inch and 4-inch mill for small-diameter steel tubes, by strengthening sales force in Vietnam and neighboring countries.
In addition, it will enhance sales of API products in the United States and other markets and strive to improve profitability of
exports. KUMA in India will strive to continue to maintain a high market share, now thar it has strengthened its supply system
of stainless steel tube with the completion of its Bangalore Plant in southern India.

Increasing Shareholder Value

Maruichi Steel Tube has been fully aware of the importance of dividends to shareholders and heretofore has been distributing
fixed and stable dividends from profits. We have decided to pay performance-based dividends, based specifically on “issuing

an annual dividend equivalent to 50% of the expected net income for the fiscal year, which is assumed to be 64.6% of the
ordinary income indicated in nonconsolidated statements of income, and maintaining an annual payour of at least 50 yen to
ensure dividends are stable at previous levels.” In addition, we designate March 31 as the date-of-record for year-end dividend
distribution and September 30 as the date-of-record for interim dividend diseribution while a record date could be established as
needed and surplus dividends paid. We also implement a shareholder special benefit plan in gratitude for the ongoing support of
our shareholders. We have held annual plant tours for individual shareholders since 2008, which will be held in Kansai area this
year as well.

If the Maruichi Group is to achieve further business growth as an independent specialized steel tube maler, it is essential
that it enhances its competitiveness by improving productivity and efficiency, and by making strategic investments that expand
business operations. In order to do so, the Group constantly re-examines, upgrades, and expands its production facilities, and
‘has systematically made active investments directed at honing its competitive edge. We believe that securing internal reserves in
preparation for pursuing strategic businesses is critical to ensuring a constant increase in value for our shareholders.

In FY2015, Maruichi Steel paid an interim dividend of ¥25.00 per share. The company’s Board of Directors meeting on
May 12, 2015 resolved to pay an annual dividend of ¥71.50 per share, including a term-end dividend of ¥46.50. As to the
basic policy regarding profit-sharing for FY2016, at the Board of Directors meeting held on May 12, 2015, we decided on
and announced a policy change from “issuing an annual dividend equivalent to 50% of the expected net income for the fiscal
year, which is assumed to be 64.6% of the ordinary income indicated in nonconsolidated statements of income” to “67.2% of
the ordinary income indicated in nonconsolidated statements of income.” The company plans to make payout for FY2016 in
accordance with this policy.

We look forward to continued support and guidance of our shareholders.

June 2015

Hiroyuki Suzuki

Representative Director,
Chairman & CEO

Yoshinori Yoshimura

Representative Director,

President & COO
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Medium-Term Management Plan

PUBLIC

‘The Company launched the fourth medium-term management plan in April this year in order to overcome this tough business

environment and continue to grow by assertively making necessary investments primarily overseas for future growth while

continuously sustaining high profitability in Japan.

1. Consolidated Management Targets:

d
Results of 3rd Medium-Term Management Plan and Targets of 4th Medium-Term Mana

FY2013
Results

117.6 (25.0%)

3rd Medium-Term Management Plan
Net sales (foreign net sales ratio)
Operating income (foreign operating income ratio) 154 (0.6%)

Ordinary income 17.5

Net income 10.6

4th Medium-Term Management Plan
Net sales

Operating income

Operating margin

ROE

‘ FYQOM:
Results

136.5 (29.4%)
20.1 (4.9%)

Return of profits to society

FY2015
Results

152.7 (34.4%)

17.7  (-%)

19.9

9.3

gement Plan

(Billions of yen)

FY2015
Targets

160.0 (35.0%)

20.0 (20.0%)
22.0
12.0

(Billions of yen)

Targets of FY2018

’1’8’5.0

22.5’

12%

6.5% or ﬁlére

70% or more

Approximately 0.5% of nonconsolidated net income after the payout of dividends

*For details of the fourth medium-term management plan, please refer to the press releases dated March 23, 2015 posted on our website.

http://www.maruichikokan.co.jp/english/
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2. Results of the main initiatives implemented under the 3rd Medium-Term Management Plan

1) Promotion of farther streamlining of domestic businesses

*Restructuring of domestic production system: Completion of the process to consolidate the former Tokyo Plant into the new
Tokyo Plant

*Strengthening of domestic sales system: Aggressive efforts ro meet reconstruction demand in Tohoku area

*Development in new fields: Installation of solar power generation equipment at each domestic plant including the mega solar
power facility in Takuma Plant, as the part of efforts to implement solar power generator

*Energy savings, reduction of CO, emissions and development of disaster-resistant business system

2) Expansion of foreign sales and strengthening profitability by focusing investments on highly promising Asian region,
strengthening automotive field as it shifts heavily towards overseas production and launching energy-related products

*Vietnam: Launch of CGL/CCL No. 2 by SUNSCO, Acquisition of JIS certification

*Americas: Development of Leavite’s automobile and AP businesses

*Americas: Launch of automobile business ar Maruichimex in Mexico

*Americas: Acquisition of structural tube division in the northwest of the United States by MOST
*India: Launch of operations at the Bangalore Plant by KUMA

3) Rapid development of human resources for business globalization (groundwork for globalization)

*Rapid development of human resources in Japan corresponding to business globalization, and at local operation overseas

4) Continuation of shareholder-focused capital policy

*Maintenance of high shareholder recurn ratio

The above initiatives were mainly implemented.
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Plan

Magjor issues

Major initiatives

i {“ ROWTH STRATEGY:
Continuing growth focused on overseas and achieving high

pm‘?u ratio both és@mu?icaliy and overseas

1) Maintaining high profit ratio in domestic operations and
overhauling and streamlining facilities at domestic plants
i Moving ahead with overhauls of aging domestic facilities and
increasing production efficiency
ii Restructuring and streamlining domestic production system,
properly allocating human resources
i Further strenOthenmg the manufacturing and sales system for the
purpose of maintaining domestic comperitiveness

2) Bolstering profitability by utilizing overseas investments to date i

i Increasing profitability through full operation of new facilities at
SUNSCO/Leavitt and reinforcing sales capabilities

ii Expanding sales on the U.S. West Coast

iii Continuing necessary investment in automobile and motorcycle
related business, and strengthening trading with Japanese
manufacturers in various regions

iv Tackling new business in non-automobile related fields

v Focusing efforts on development of “human resources that can
perform overseas” and “enhancing local human resources.”

[

SHAREHOLDER-FOCUSED CAPTTAL POLICY:
Maintaining a high dividend payour ratio and ralsing
shareholder return ratio and ROE

i Maintaining a high dividend payout ratio

it High profirability and a policy that prioritizes shareholders

‘a) Replacing facilities at domestic plants: 3-year total investment:

¥15.0 billion (including affiliated plants)

b) Consolidating Osaka plants into Sakai plant

-¢) Further focusing efforts on recruitment and human resources

education

a) SUNSCO (HCM): Expanding sales of 16-inch, two small-diameter
tube lines, CGL and CCL products by strengthening sales capabilities
in Vietnam
Selling API products to the U.S. and other regions, and improving
export profits

b) Leavitt: Stably operating facilities, sfrengthening sales capabilities ‘
for APT/ASTMAS3B and products for automobiles and other users

':1) MAC: Streamlining production through investment in overhauling

facilities and expanding sales by strengthening sales capabilities

'b) Strengthening sales in the northwest of the U.S. and the west of

Camda with MOST as base

a) Mexico: Actively responding to the shift ofproductxon by various
automobile companies and expanding transactions with European
and the U.S. companies

b) India: Expanding sales and étrerlgtlxexmirlg profitability chmu’gkh
utilization of the new Bangalore Plant

9] Ensunng profirability by furcher increase ofgompetmveness in
China (MMP) Vx:gnam Indonesn, and the U. S (Leavitt)

d) Considering expansion into new regions and new areas in the
automobile Aeld

a) Strengthening response for users in various regions including
Japanese companies that are expanding into the regions

2) Continuing development of “human resources that can perform
overseas’ W![h a focus on young employees

b) Employing local human resources. Increasing the ratio of employees
in Japan who have experience of overseas posting, and having them
play an active role leveraging their overseas experience after they
return to Japan

a) Continuing dividend policy of “nonconsolidated ordinary income x
(1- effective corporate tax rate) x 50%)
Returning the effect of the decrease in the effective corporate tax
rate as dividends
Raising the minimum dividend from the current 30 yen per share
to 50 yen per share

b) Raising shareholder return fatio (70% and dver) :md ROE (6.5%
and over) by implementing share buyback

kY

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION:
Returning 2 fixed amount of revenue to soslety as a sustainable
corporate group that grows and develops togeeher with sociery

a) Providing approximately 0.5% of nonconsolidated net income
after payment of dividends for cultural, educational, sports,
environmental protection and other activities in local communities
in Japan and overseas
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Product Overview

Maruichi Product Lines ar a Glance

All of the company’s steel tubes are manufactured at plants whose scrupulous quality management systems cover every phase of
the transformation of raw materials into finished products.

Products are only shipped after passing rigorous inspections to certify that they satisfy JIS and other international standards
corresponding to their intended use.

Public Standards
Product Line Sg?is;n Mariichi fvallable Sosh
ruicni’s vailabie 51ze Range
I ASTM BS APl OTHER Owim Specs - {in mm unless otherwise specified)
O G3444 21.7%1.9~508.0x19.0
ERW General O] G3466 N “ | 50x50x1.6~400x400x19.0
Structural and
Building Structural O B - o BCR 150%150x6.0~400x400x19.0
Tube Green
o o House GH 1277486
; 1/2"x1/2"x0.039"~
L) ) A . 16x16'0.625"
O 3445 : 8.0x0.6~76.2x3.5
ERW Mechanical [] [’:] STKMRK 11x1 1x’1’i0~70x25x240
Tube !
- - STKMRR 12x12x1.0~80x40x2.0
O STKMRS 25x25%2.3~90x45x3.2
ERW Pipe Piling O A5525 318.5x6.9~508.0x19.0
O G3452 ; 6A~500A
ERW Gas / O G3454 15A~500A (Sch 40)
Water Pipe O A53 1/8"~20"
O 1387 1/8"~6"
ewocteand O e TumimgToSO™27AT
Line Pipe e) 5L Line Pipe 4-1/2"~16"
% Thick G16~G104
O €8305 Thin C19~C75
! Threadless E19~E75
ERW Electrical e e . e
Conduit e} 31 3/47m2" §
O 4568 20~32 &
. . . 19}
Tapered Pole and o . . 5
Other Fabricated JIL1001 sm=12m in heightas s
Products O O
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(L)
Structural columas place
(Below)

Green house framing

General Structurval and Building Structural Tishes

The company’s strength-certified structural steel tube products fulfill vital roles in diverse fields, including architecture, civil
engineering and machinery, while contributing to industrial development.

Our structural steel tubes are currently used as structural columns for buildings ranging from low-rise to high-rise,
scaffolding tubes and greenhouses, as well as in other construction and civil engineering ficlds.

In September 2002, the company started manufacturing highly corrosion-resistant 55% aluminum-zine plated struccural

steel tube products for use in agricultural facilities.

Warer Pipes, OCTGs and Electrical Conduirs

Before piping materials for steam, water, gas and oil are shipped to customers, they must undergo rigorous inspections to
certify that they meet JIS and other international standards corresponding to their intended use.

The company’s electrical cable conduits undergo hot dip galvanization on both sides of the tube to ensure both the wire
and the cable are protected for a long period of time.

These products are widely applied in plant construction projects and power generation plants around the world.
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Mechanical Tibes

Steel tubes are integral to automobiles, motorcycles, bicycles, medical equipment, fitness machines, office automation
equipment, office and educational furnjture, among other products, and the company’s high-precision produces fulfill
numerous useful roles for individuals and society.

In particular, cutring-edge technology is essential for steel cubes for automotive applications, including high tensile
steel (440N-1470N), in view of automakers’ ever increasing demands for lighter, stronger products at lower cost. Maruichi
Steel Tube rises to the challenge by deploying expertise accumulated over the past fifty years in combination with the lacest

technology available.

Maruichi Poles and Other Fabricared Produces

Steel structures, such as lamp posts, road signs, traffic lights and security barriers, ensure safery while creating aesthetically
pleasing cityscapes or biending with the landscape. They are becoming increasingly important in contemporary society as
highway networks are extended to provincial cities, high-density urban areas with numerous high-rise buildings proliferate,
new towns are constructed, and environments are enriched to suit aspirational lifestyles.

Our integrated management system encompasses design, fabrication and installation of these steel-pole products. We
take pride in satisfying the most exacting safety standards for this vital infrascructure that contributes to the quality of life for
everyone.

Product Overview
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Network Strategically Located Manufacturing Facilities and Sales Network

Domestic Network

*Hokkaido Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd.

Manufacture of steel tube and steel pole products
(products from this company are sold by Maruichi Steel
Tubes Ltd. and shipped to the Hokkaido and Tohoku
regions of Japan)

*Kyushu Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd.

Manufacture of steel tubes

(products of this company are sold by Maruichi Steel Tubes
Ltd. and shipped to the Okinawa, Kyushu and part of the
Chugoku regions of Japan)

*Shikoku Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd.

Manufacture of steel tube products

@ Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd. Head Office/
Maruichi Kohan Lid. Head Office/

(@ Sapporo Office

@Tokyo Office

() Nagoya Office

() Osaka Office

(& Hiroshima Office

(@ Fukuoka Office

(8 Okinawa Maruichi Ltd. Main Office

€% Hokkaido Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd. Tomakomai Plant
£3 Kashima Pole Plant

€5 Tokyo Plant

€3 Nagoya Plant

£% Osaka Plant

€3 Kasuga Indusery Led.

€3 Sakai Plant

4% Sakai Pole Plant

€3 Shikoku Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd. Tachibana Planc
0 Takuma Plant

%1 Shikoku Maruichi Sreel Tube Ltd. Shikcku Plant
& Kyushu Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd. Kyushu Plant
{8 Alpha Metal Co., Ltd.

a”

&

*Kasuga Industry Ltd.

Cutting of steel tubes and distribution of accessory products
for electrical conduirs

*Maruichi Kohan Ltd.

A trading division of the Maruichi Group that specializes in
the sale of steel tubes manufactured by the Group
*Okinawa Maruichi Ltd.

Sales and distribution of steel tube products as well as
materials for water and electrical systems

*Alpha Metal Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and sales of automobile parts, etc.

@e
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Ouverseas Netwo Tf"i%

*Maruichi American Corporation (MAC) o]-Spiral Steel Pipe Co., Ltd.

US-based subsidiary that manufactures and sells steel tube Manufacturing and sales of steel pipe pile and steel pipe sheet
products to US West Coast markets pile

*Maruichi Leavitt Pipe & Tube, LLC (Leavitt) sMaruichi Metal Product (Foshan) Co., Ltd. (MMP)
Manufacture and sales of steel tube products Manufacture and sales of steel tube products

*Maruichi Oregon Steel Tube, LLC (MOST) sMaruichi Metal Product (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (MMP)
Manufacture and sales of steel tube products Manufacture and sales of steel tube products
sMARUICHIMEX S.A. de C.V. (Maruichimex) oPT. Indonesia Steel Tube Works (ISTW)

Manufacture and sales of steel tube products Manufacture and sales of steel tube products

*Alphametal Mexico S.A. de C.V. (Alphamex) *MARUICHI KUMA STEEL TUBE PRIVATE LIMITED
Manufacture and sales of steel tube products (KUMA)

°Maruichi Sun Steel Joint Stock Company (SUNSCO) Manufacturing and sales of stainless steel tube and aluminized
Manufacture and sales of steel tube and galvanized/color steel tube

steel sheet
eMaruichi Sun Steel (Hanoi) Co., Ltd.

Manufacture and sales of steel tube products

&5 Maruichi American Corporation (MAC)
California, U.S.A
€2 Maruichi Leavitr Pipe & Tube, LLC (Leavitr)
MHlinois, U.S.A
€% Maruichi Oregon Steel Tube, LLC (MOST)
Oregon, U.S.A
3 MARUICHIMEX S.A, de C.V. (Maruichimex)
Aguascalientes, Mexico
€3 Alphametal Mexico S.A, de C.V. (Alphamex) o
Aguascalientes, Mexico & i
£% Maruichi Sun Steel Joinit Stock Company (SUNSCO) &
Binh Duong Province, Vietnarm .
€% Maruichi Sun Steel (Hanoi) Co:; Lid. &
Vink Phuc Province, Vietnan ©
€3 J-Spiral Steel Pipe Co, Led.
Long Thanh, Vietnam
€3 Maruichi Metal Product (Foshan} Co:, Ltd. (MMP)
Guangdong, China [
% Maruichi Metal Product (Foshan) Ca.; Ltd. (MMP) Wuhan Branch
Hubei, China
8 Maruichi Metal Product (Tianjin) Co., Led. (MMP)
Tianjin, China
€ PT. Indonesia Steel Tube Works (ISTW) Jakarta Plant
Jakarta, Indonesia
€8 PT. Indonesia Steel Tube Works (ISTW) Semarang Plant
Semarang, Indonesia
&1 PT. Indonesia Steel Tube Works (ISTW) Cikarang Plant
Cikarang, Indonesia
{5 MARUICHI KUMA STEEL TUBE PRIVATE LIMITED (KUMA) MANESAR PLANT
Manesar, India
& MARUICHI KUMA STEEL TUBE PRIVATE LIMITED (KUMA) BANGALORE PLANT
Bangalore, India

Network
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Consolidated Financial Review

Results of Operations

Net Sales and Operating Income

Net sales increased 11.8% from the previous year to ¥152,668 million. Cost of sales increased 16.9% from the previous year to
¥122,198 million. Consequently, the cost of sales ratio was 80.0%.

Furthermore, selling, general and administrative expenses increased 7.1% to ¥12,736 million and this represents 8.3% on a
percentage-of-sales basis. As a result, operating income decreased 11.7% to ¥17,734 million.

Operating results by region
’ < VI Ratio of Net Sales by Region

Japan
Net sales were ¥100,172 million and segment profit was ¥17,906 million.

& Asia
20.2%

North America
Net sales were ¥21,684 million and segment loss was ¥223 million.

- North America

14.2%

® Japan

65.6%

Asia
Net sales were ¥30,812 million and segment loss was ¥46 million.

Other Income and Expense

Other income and expense resulted in expense of ¥(2,403) million in FY2015 (income of ¥2,194 million in the previous fiscal
year).

This was mainly due to positive factors of interest and dividend income of ¥1,206 million, exchange gain, net ¥303 million,
cquity in carnings of affiliated companies, etc. of ¥581 million and gain on sales of investments in securities of ¥817 million as
well as negative factors of interest expense of ¥286 million and impairment loss of ¥5,358 million.

As a result, we posted net income of ¥9,300 million (net income of ¥13,748 million in the previous fiscal year).

¢ Cost of Sales Ratio # Ratio of Selling, General and # Net income per Share # Net Assets per Share (lefiscale)

Administrative Expenses # Equity Ratio (righe scale)
(%) (%) (Yen) (Yen) (%)
82 10.0 200 3.000 90

9.5 2,500 % g 85
.
80 150 | i
'"; 0 2.000 § 80
& 4 &
4 > .
78 4 85 100 1,500 [ Boo7s
w 7 .
S :
“aed 8.0 1,000 %;é % 70
76 50 i& gﬁ
75 500 = - I
2 ?@ =
2 53 o
74 7.0 0o - = ks o H L B
2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015 2013 2014 2015
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Analysis of the Financial Situation

Total assets at the end of FY2015 increased by ¥20,970 million to ¥321,452 million.

Current assets increased by ¥7,451 million to ¥153,779 million. This was mainly due to a ¥1,215 million increase in finished
goods, a ¥3,508 million increase in raw materials and supplies, 2 ¥2,475 million increase in short-term investments, and a
¥1,879 million increase in trade notes and accounts receivable, despite a2 ¥2,609 million decrease in cash and bank deposits.

Investments and advances increased by ¥6,177 million to ¥76,657 million. This was mainly due to an increase in unrealized
holding gains on available-for-sale securities resulting from the increase of security value in stock markets.

Property, plant and equipment increased by ¥5,632 million to ¥87,266 million mainly due to inclusion of the newly
established MOST in the scope of consolidation.

Total liabilities at the end of FY2015 increased by ¥9,116 million to ¥67,078 million. This increase was mainly attriburable
to a ¥4,864 million increase in trade notes and accounts payable and a ¥3,858 million increase in short-term bank loans.

Looking at net assets, retained earnings increased by ¥3,197 million, due to net income of ¥9,300 million despite payments
of ¥6,228 million in dividends. Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities increased by ¥5,274 million and foreign

currency translation adjustments increased by ¥2,885 million. As a result, total net assets increased by ¥11,854 million to
¥254,374 million.

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents (hereinafter “cash”) at the end of FY2015 increased by ¥4,380 million from the end of the previous
fiscal year to ¥47,869 million. The results of the various activities and their respective causes are outlined below.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows provided by operating activities decreased to ¥19,295 million (¥1,918 million down from the previous fiscal year).
Major cash inflows included income before income taxes and minority interests of ¥15,331 million, along with depreciation
and amortization of ¥6,093 million and impairment loss of ¥5,358 million. Major cash outflows included income raxes paid of
¥8,187 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash flows used in investing activities were ¥8,938 million (¥1,273 million up from the previous fiscal year). Major cash inflows
included (increase) decrease in time deposits with original maturities of over three months of ¥6,990 million and proceeds from
sales of investments in securities of ¥7,109 million. Major cash outflows included payments of ¥6,207 million from acquiring
business by MOST. Looking at capital expenditures, payments for purchase of non-current assers of ¥9,598 million were
recorded mainly due to completion of construction of the No. 2 Plant of Maruichimex and the Bangalore Plant of KUMA as
well as acquisition of land in association with solar power generation equipment and the transfer of Yokohama Sales Office of

Maruichi Kohan.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Cash flows used in financing activities were ¥6,443 million (¥1,450 million up from the previous fiscal year). Major cash inflows
included net increase (decrease) in short-term bank loans of ¥643 million and minority shareholders’ contributions of capital of
¥654 million in relation to capiral increase at Maruichimex. Major cash outflows included ¥1,452 million from repayments of
long-term debt and ¥6,228 million from dividends paid.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets Ao of March 31. 2015 and 2014

Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Mote 1)
2015 2014 2015

Current assets:

Cash and bank deposits (Notes 5, 11 & 14) ¥ 61,312 ¥ 63,921 % S10,209

Short-term investments (Notes 6 & 14) 23,157 20,682 192,702

Trade notes and accounts receivable (Notes 7, 11, 14 & 17) 24,977 33,098 291,062

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (2% (252) {238)

Inventories (Notes 8 & 11) 29,572 25,249 19,416

Deferred income taxes (Note 13) B87 1,067

Others (Note 11) 3,508 2,563 29,187
Total current assets 183,779 146,328 1,279,675

Investments and advances:

Investments in securities (Notes 6 & 14) 64,221 58,470 534,415

[nvestments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies 2,568 9,082 FERGS

Others (Note 11) 2,868 2,928 23,868
Total investments and advances TH,557 70,480 637,008

Property, plant and equipment (Notes 9 & 11):

Land 32,661 30,526

Buildings and structures 49,863 45,466

Machinery and equipment ’ ‘ 108,630 97,492

Construction in progress 2,999 3,652 24,959

Leased property under finance lease 419 2 3,488

194,572 177,138 1,619,143

Less accumulated depreciation {107,306} (95,504) {892,553
Total property, plant and equipment 87,266 81,634 726,190

Other assets:

“Deferred income taxes (Note 13) ’ 422 343 3,513
Goodwill 1,011 325 8,415
Others (Note 11) 2,317 1,372 19,277

Total other assets 3,758 2,040 31,205
Total assets ¥321,452 ¥300,482 82.674,97

"The accompanying notes are an integral pare of chese Anancial starements.

Consalidated Balance Sheets
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Thousands of

U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Note 1)
2815 2014 28315
DIARILITIES AND NEY ASSETS
Current liabilities:
Short-term bank loans (Notes 10, 11 & 14) ¥ 10,565 ¥ 6,707 $ 87918
Payables:
Trade notes and accounts (Note 14) 24,489 19,625 233,788
Construction 1.029 1,397 8,563
Other 2,135 1,936 17,767
Accrued income taxes (Note 13) 2,991 4,417 24,886
Accrued bonuses to employees Rad 861 7,057
Accrued bonuses to directors and corporate audicors &0 81 663
Accrued expenses 2,217 2,094 18,445
Others 1,611 345 13,415
Total current liabilities 45,963 37,463 387,482
Long-term liabilities: , , N
Long-term debt (Notes 10, 11 & 14) 11,270 12,676 93,783
Accrued retirement benefits to directors and corporate auditors 55 52 544
Net defined benefit liability (Note 12) 3,121 3,405 35,973
Deferred income taxes (Note 13) 6,428 4,151 53,490
Others 231 215 1,817
Total long-term liabiliries 21,115 20,499 178,707
Total liabilities 67,078 57,962 558,189
Contingencies (Note 17)
Net assets (Note 18):
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock
authorized: 200,000,000 shares in 2015 and 2014
issued: 94,000,000 shares in 2015 and 2014 9,595 9,595 79,846
Additional paid-in capiral 15,822 15,822 131,663
Retained earnings B 223,200 220,003 1.857.369
Less treasury stock at cost - -
9,270,643 shares in 2015 and 9,265,038 shares in 2014 {20,506) (20,492) {170,645
Total shareholders’ equity 228,111 224,928 1,898,233
Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities (Note ) 14,382 9,108 119,683
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,270 (1,615) 10,566
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (Note 12) (121 (69) {1,0804)
Total accumulated other comprehensive income 15,531 7,424 129,248
Stock options (Note 19) 135 112 1,121
Minority interests 13,587 10,056 88,190
Total net assets 254,374 242,520 2,116,789
Total liabilities and net assets ¥321.452 ¥300,482 52,674,978
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Maruichi Steel Tube Lid. and Consolidated Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income o5 o014

‘Thousands of

U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Note 1)
2015 2014 2015
Net sales - ‘ ¥152,668 ¥136,548 $1,270,435
* Cost of sales (Note 20) 104,571 1,016,877
Gross profit 31,977 253,558
Selling, general and administrative expenses (Notes 15 & 20) 11,897 105,980
Operating income 20,080 147,578
Other income (expense):
Interest and dividend income 1,200 1,060 10,036
Interest expense {284 (193) {2,381
Gains on sales of property, plant and equipment 24 98 203
Gains on sales of investments in securities (Note 6) 817 286 6,798
Compensation income for expropriation ’ , - 3,145 -
Exchange gain, net 3% 755 2,519
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies, etc. 581 515 4,835
Losses on sales of investments in securities (Note 6) - 9 -
Impairment loss (Note 16) {5,358} - {44,590}
Losses on devaluation of investments in affiliated companies (Note 14) - (363) -
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment, etc. {34 (368) {251}
Loss on reduction of property, plant and equipment (Note 9) - (3,089) -
Other, net 340 357 2,824
{2,403 2,194 {20,000}
~Income before income taxes and minority interests 15,331 22,274 127,578
Income taxes (Note 13): ; , ;
Current 6 B6E 7,594 57,156
Deferred 455 441 3791
7324 8,035 60,947
Income before minority interests 8,007 14,239 56,631
Minority interests {1,293 491 {10,759
Net income ¥ 5,300 ¥ 13,748 % 77,390
[} U.S. dollars
g Yen (Note 1)
e
e Per share amounts:
8 Net income: ;
?:_J: Basic ¥i09.76 ¥162.25 80,91
% Diluted ‘ ¥i09.66  ¥162.12 $0.91
% Cash dividends ¥ 7150 ¥ 73.50 $0.59
"é Weighted average number of shares (thousands)
§ Common stock ; 84,733 84,734
Dilutive securities (stock options) 84,811 84,803

“The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial starements.
5 =S
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Maruichi Steel Tube Lid. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

Thousands of

U.S. dollars
Mitlions of yen (Note 1)
2015 2014 2015
Income before minority interests ¥ 8,007 ¥14,239 % 66,631
Other comprehensive income: ;
Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securities (Note 6) 3,314 3,748 44,323
Foreign currency translation adjustments 4,451 4,404 28,716
Remeasurements of defined benefic plans (Note 12) (39} - (324}
.Share of other comprehensive income of affiliates and
subsidiaries accounted for using equity method 57 960 4,755
Total other comprehensive income (Note 21) 9,298 9,112 F7 570
Total comprehensive income ¥17,305 ¥23,351 $144,001
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent ¥17,407 ¥21,445 $144,854
Non-controlling interests {102} 1,906 {853}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of chese financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

PUBLIC

Maruichi Steel Tube Lid. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
Years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

Millions of yen

Shareholders” equity

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Unrealized Toed ( o
c Additional Retained Treasurs Total holding gains Om&’?’ Remewsurermnents accuradated ‘S((ka Mmumy Toral net
OMBORpudin  Lemeed MY holders oo available- ST e other options Interests - aawets
srod capital carnings stoe equity for-sale me? 0Oy e wmprehensie
securities adjustments income
BALANCE, April 1, 2013 ¥9,595  ¥15,822  ¥211,893  ¥(20,504) ¥216,806 ¥5,375  ¥(5.579) ¥ - ¥ (204) ¥102 ¥ 8,553 ¥215257
Cumulative effects of changes
in accounting policies - -
Restated balance 9,595 15,822 211,893 (20,504) 216,806 5375 (5,579) - (204) 102 8553 225257
Changes during the year:
Cash dividends (5,635) (5,633) - (5,635}
Net income 13,748 13,748 - 13,748
Purchase of treasury stock 2) 2 - @
Sales of treasury stock (3 14 11 - 1
Change of scope of consolidation - - -
Net changes in items other
than shareholders’ equity - 3,733 3,964 69) 7,628 10 1,503 9,141
Total changes during the year - - 8,110 12 8,122 3,733 3,964 (69) 7,628 10 1,503 17,263
BALANCE, April 1, 2014 9,595 15822 220,003 (20,492) 224,928 9,108 {1,615) 69 7,424 12 10,056 242,520
Cumulative effects of changes
in accounting policies 215 215 215
Restated balance 15,821 220218 (20491 235143 e 112 e 24273
Changes during the year:
Cash dividends 6228 6228 {6,228}
Net income 4300 4,308 - 2,
Purchase of treasury stock {14}
Sales of treasury stock i i 8 g
Change of scope of cansolidation {501 90 90
Net changes in items other
than shareholders’ equity - 23
Total changes during the year - i 2582 2.968 23
BALANCE, March 31, 2015 ¥ ¥228.01 ¥, ¥133
Thousands of U.S. dollars (Note 1)
Sharcholders” equity Accumulated other comprehensive income
Unrealized Foreiz Towd . o
I Additional Retined  Treasury Totwl holding gains mué’? Remeasurerenis - accurmulaved St‘fck T‘\'Tmumy Total net
(muﬁ:m paid-in ’m!nc’ {mﬁ;:} shareholders’  on available- c}urr;n»L) of defined other options interests assets
$oc capital carning srod equity for-sale ':fms RUOR ke plans  comprehensive
securities  SOWIRERE incorme
BALANCE, April 1, 2014 $79,846  $131,663 $1,830,761 $(170,526) 51,871,744  $ 75,794  $(13,443) § (570) $ 61,781 $ 933 383,685 $2,018,143
P
Cumulative effects of changes
in accounting policies 1,796 1,796 - 1,796
Restated balance LARIZART TGRS TR {13445 833 83,685 2019930
Changes during the year:
Cash dividends (51,827
Net income 77390 -
Purchase of treasury stock {126} -
Sales of treasury stock i i i - i
Change of scope of consolidation (734 754
Net changes in items other
than shareholders’ equity 43,882 24,089 188 4503 2157
Total changes during the year - IR S F {m 43589 24000 143 4505 96858

BALANCE, March 31, 2015 B13L603 SLE3Y 8

314,566

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

00544



PUBLIC

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows T L oo st

Thousands of

U.S. dollars
Millions of yen (Note 1)
2415 2014 2015

Cash flows from operating activities: ‘ )
Income before income taxes and minority interests ¥15,331 ¥22 274 R127.578

Adjustments to reconcile income before income raxes and minority
interests to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 4,093 5,299 50,701
Impairment loss 5,358 - 44,590
Decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts {229 (61) {1,905}
Compensation income for expropriation - (3,145) -
Loss on reduction of property, plant and equipments o - 3,089 o
(Decrease) increase in reserve for bonuses to employees {15} 29 (128)
{Decrease) increase in reserve for bonuses to directors and corporate auditors (1 6 {16}
{Decrease) increase in net defined benefit liability , , (16} 212 {137
Increase in accrued retirement benefits to direcrors and corporate auditors i3 5 108
Interest and dividend income {1,206} (1,060) {10,036)
Interest expense 285 193 ; 2,381
Equity in earnings of affiliated companies, etc. (5813 (515) {4,839
Gains on sales of property, plant and equipment, net , (4} (85) 36y
Losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment, erc. 30 368 ; 2a1
Gains on sales and valuation of short-term and investments in securities, net {817} 277) (G.798)
Losses on devaluation of investments in affiliated companies ) - 363 B -
Increase in trade receivables R § W5 v (3,174) {19,290
Increase in inventories {1,772} (1,943) (14,748}
Increase in trade payables , 4,043 4,794 33,648
Other, net 1,628 (1,093) 8,887
Subrtotal 26,304 25,279 218,887
_ Dividends and interest income received 1,465 1,449 12192
Interest paid ; (287} (193) . {2,380
Income taxes paid (8,187 (5,322) 68,130
Net cash provided by operating activities 19,295 21,213 164,567
Cash flows from investing activities: B .
Decrease in time deposits with original maturities over three months 6,950 2,019 £8,164
Net increase in short-term investments ‘ (2,01 (1,163) (16,724
Proceeds from compensation for expropriation , - 944 -
Payments for purchases of investments in securities (4,9263 (3,186) {40,994}
Proceeds from sales of investments in securities 3,232 - b
_ Payments for investments in affiliated companies ( (617) (31
Payments for business transfer (Note 5) {6,207} - {51,652
Payments for purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (9,598} (8,841) (79,867}
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 46 117 386
Other, net 92 (170) 762
Net cash used in investing activities {8,938 (7,665) 74,378}
Cash flows from financing activities: @
Net increase (decrease) in short-term bank loans 643 (607) 5352 E
Proceeds from long-term debt ; o 50 2,220 416 =
Repayments of long-term debt {1,452) (871) {12,082) 3
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock 0 0 1 =
Payments for purchases of treasury stock , ; {14} 2) (120 2
Dividends paid {6,228} (5,635) {51,827 g
Proceeds from share issuance to minority shareholders 654 - 5442 g
Dividends paid to minority shareholders {963 (98) (798} 2
Other, net - 0 - 9
Net cash used in financing activities {6,443 (4,993) 53,616} -’E
S
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 364 512 3,026 §
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,278 9,067 35,599 Y
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 43,489 34,422 361,895
Net increase resulting from a newly consolidated subsidiary 142 - 847
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year (Note 5) ¥47 869 ¥43 489 $398,341

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 00545
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1, Basis of Presenting Consolidated Finandial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared based on the accounts maintained by Maruichi Steel
Tube Lid. (the “Company”), its consolidated subsidiarics and afhiliated companies in accordance witch the provisions set forth in
the Japanese Financial Instruments and Exchange Law (the “Law”) and in conformiry with accounting principles and practices
generally accepted in Japan which are different in certain respects from application and disclosure requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the consolidated financial statements issued domestically to present them in
a form more familiar to readers outside Japan. In addition, certain notes included herein are not required under accounting
principles and practices generally accepted in Japan but have been presented as additional information.

The U.S. dollar amounts included herein are provided solely for convenience and are stated, as a matter of arithmetical
computation only, at the rate of ¥ 120.17 = $ 1.00, the approximate rate of exchange on March 31, 2015. The translation
should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts have been, could have been or could in the future be
converted into U.S. dollars at this or any other rate.

2. Sumrmary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Principles of consolidation
The accounting policies and procedures applied to the parent company and its consolidated subsidiaries for similar transactions

and events under similar circumstances are in principle unified for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Therefore, for the financial statements prcparéd by consolidated overseas subsidiaries, necessary adjustments have been made
in accordance with above principle in the consolidation process. However the financial statements prepared in accordance with
IFRSs or the generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (U.S. GAAP) are used with no adjustments, unless
otherwise stipulated by Practical Issue Task Force (PITF) No. 18, “Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies to
Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by the ASB] on May 17, 2006.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its 13 (11 in 2014) consolidated subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”). A subsidiary is defined to be a company more than 50% of whose shares are held by the Company
or 40-50% of whose shares are held by the Company and which is controlled by the Company through certain channels. All
significant inter-company balances, transacrions and unrealized profit thereof are eliminated in consolidation. Other subsidiaries
are not consolidated as they are not significant in terms of total assets, net sales, net income or retained carnings.

Seven (five in 2014) foreign consolidated subsidiaries have December year-end and two (two in 2014) domestic consolidared
subsidiaries have February year-end, which are reflected in the consolidated financial statements by their own fiscal years without
adjusting to that of the Company. Any material events occurred during the period between March 31 and above different closing
dares are adjusted for the purpose of consolidation and reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Five (five in 2014) affiliated companies are accounted for by the equity method.

Investments in six (six in 2014) unconsolidated subsidiaries and other three (three in 2014) affiliated companies are stated at
cost and are not accounted for by the equity method because of their immaterial impact.

Differences between the cost and the underlying net equity at fair value of investments in consolidated subsidiaries and in
companies which are accounted for by the equity method have been amortized by the straight-line method over the period less
than 20 years, except for immaterial differences which are fully charged to income in the year of acquisition.

{b) Translation of foreign currencies
All assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at current rate at year-end date

and the resulting translation gains or losses are charged to income. Revenues and expenses are translated ar the exchange rates
prevailing when the transactions are made.

As to translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, assets and liabilitics are translated into Japanese yen at ycar-
end exchange rates, shareholders’ equity accounts are translated at historical rates, and revenues and expenses are translated
at average rates prevailing during the year. The resulting foreign currency translation adjustments are shown as a separate
component of net assets.

{¢) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits on demand

and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less and insignificant risk of change in value.
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(d) Short-term investments and investments in securities
Securities, which are included in short-term investments and investments in securities, held by the Group are classified as

available-for-sale securities as defined by the accounting standard for financial instruments.

Available-for-sale securities for which market quotations are available are carried at fair value at the balance sheet date. Net
unrealized gains or losses on these securities are reported as a separate item in net assets, net of applicable raxes.

Unquoted equity securities are stated at cost. The cost is determined by the moving average method.

In cases where the fair value of available-for-sale securities has declined significantly and the impairment of value is not
deemed temporary, those securities are written down to the fair value and the resulting losses are charged to income for the
period in which the loss incurs.

(e) Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies which are not accounted for by the equiry method are stated

at cost determined by the moving average method.

(f) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net selling value. The costs of finished goods, raw materials and supplies are

determined by the gross average method, the moving average method and the last purchase cost method, respectively. The net
selling valuc is defined as the selling price less addirional estimated manufacturing costs and estimated selling expenses.

{(g) Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed by the declining balance method, except for
buildings acquired on or after April 1, 1998, which are depreciated by the straight-line method based on the following range of

estimated useful lives of the assets.
Buildings and structures 10—50 years
Machinery and equipment 5—14 years
The cost of property, plant and equipment retired or otherwise disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are
eliminated from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is charged to income during the applicable period. Normal
repairs and maintenance including minor renewals and improvements are charged to income as incurred.

(h) Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts is established to provide for future losses based on the historical rate of the credit loss

experienced. In addition, allowances for specific customer accounts, which were deemed uncollectible, are provided.

(i) Net defined benefit liability

"The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries have unfunded lump-sum severance indemnity plans and corporate
pension plans. The Company transferred a part of its retirement benefit plans from a tax qualified pension plan to a defined
benefit corporate pension plan (cash balance plan) in June 2008. Foreign consolidated subsidiaries adopt defined contribution
pension plans. In addition, for those defined benefit corporate pension plans and lump-sum severance indemnity plans certain
consolidated subsidiaries have, net defined benefit liability and net pension expense are calculated by the simplified method. Net
defined benefit liability represent mainly the estimated present value of projected benefit obligations in excess of fair value of
the plan assets at the end of the fiscal year. Upon the calculation of retirement benefit obligations, projected benefit obligations
attriburable up to the end of this fiscal year are accounted for using the benefit formula basis. The unrecognized actuarial
differences are amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of three years from the fiscal year following the fiscal year they
occur. The prior service cost is charged ro income when incurred. The account includes the balance for employees and operating
officers, which is calculated based on the current rate of pay, length of service and consideration of each respective position.

(j) Accrued retirement benefits for directors and corporate auditors

Certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries provide for lump-sum retirement benefits with respect to directors and corporate
auditors based on the current rate of pay, length of service and consideration of each respective position. The provisions are not

funded.
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(k) Income taxes
Accrued income taxes are provided at the amount currently payable. The Group has adopted the deferred rax accounting

method. Income taxes are determined using the asset and liability approach, whereby deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized in respect to temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and those as reported in the financial
staterments.

{I) Consumption taxes
Consumption taxes are not included in the respective accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of income but are

recorded in the consolidated balance sheet in net of taxes receivable and payable.

{m) Appropriation of retained earnings

The Company is able to appropriate retained earnings (primarily for cash dividend payments) by resolution of the Board of
Directors, provided that certain criteria are met.

(n) Net income per share
Basis net income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the year.

3. Accounting Changes

The Company has adopted “Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (the Accounting Standards Board of Japan
(hereinafter, “ASB]”) Statement No. 26, May 17, 2012, hereinafter “Retirement Benefits Standard”) and “Guidance on
Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASB] Guidance No. 25, March 26, 2015, hereinafrer “Retirement Benefits
Guidance”) from the current fiscal year, with regard to paragraph 35 of Retirement Benefits Standard and paragraph 67 of
Retirement Benefits Guidance. Accordingly, the Company has revised the caleulation method for projected benefir obligations
and service cost, and has changed the method of attributing the projected benefits to periods of services from the straight-line
method to the benefit formula basis, and also changed the method of determining the discount rate from using the discount rate
based on the terms closely related to the employees” average remaining service years to using a single weighted average discount
rate thar reflects the estimated term and amount of benefit payments.

The Retirement Benefits Standard and other accounting methods are applied in accordance with the transitional provisions
set forth in paragraph 37 of the Retirement Benefits Standard, the effect of the change in calculation method for projected
benefit obligations and service cost is reflected as increase or decrease in retained earnings at the beginning of the fiscal year.

As a result, at the beginning of the fiscal year, net defined benefit liability decreased by ¥334 million ($2,779 thousand) and
retained earnings increased by ¥216 million ($1,796 thousand). The effect on operating income and income before income taxes
and minority interests for the fiscal year was immaterial.

The effect on net assets per share, basic net income per share and diluted net income per share was immarerial.

4, Unapplied new accounting standards

“Accounting Standard for Business Combinations” (ASB] Statement No. 21, September 13, 2013)

“Accounting Standard for Consolidated Financial Statements” (ASB] Statement No. 22, September 13, 2013)

“Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASBJ Statement No. 7, September 13, 2013)

“Accounting Standard for Earnings per Share” (ASB] Statement No. 2, September 13, 2013)

“Guidance on Accounting Standard for Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business Divestitures” (ASB]
Guidance No. 10, September 13, 2013)

“Guidance on Accounting Standard for Earnings per Share” (ASB] Guidance No. 4, September 13, 2013)

“Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting for Accounting Policies to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial

Statements” (PITF No. 18, March 26, 2015)
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(1) Overview

‘The following items have been mainly revised; (a) accounting treatment for changes in the parent’s ownership interests in

a subsidiary when the parent continues to retain control of that subsidiary after the additional acquisition of the parent’s
ownership interest in that subsidiary (b) accounting treatment for acquisition-related costs, (c) presentation of net income as well
as the change of minority interests to non-controlling interests, (d) provisional accounting treatment, (¢) to reflect the change in
the accounting treatment of goodwill under U.S. GAAP in January, 2014, () to reflect the revision of Accounting Standard for
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASB] Statement No. 22, September 13, 2013) and (g) to clarify the adjustment necessary
related to recognizing actuarial differences in profit or loss.

(2) Date of adoption

The Companies will adopt the accounting standards effective from the beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2016.
In addition, the Companies will adopt the provisional accounting for those business combinations initiated after the

beginning of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2016.

(3) The effect of adopting the accounting standards
The effect has not been determined at the time consolidated financial statements were prepared.

5. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Information

{1) Cash and cash equivalent

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents between the consolidated statements of cash flows and the consolidated balance
sheets is as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2015 2014 2015

Cash and bank deposits - ?’%{é} 2312 ¥63,921 - 5;,31{}?2{}9
Time deposits with maturities over 3 months {13,443 (20,432) {111,868
Cash and cash equivalents ¥47,869 ¥43,489 $398,341

(2) Assets acquired by business transfer

Maruichi Oregon Steel Tube, LLC, a 100% subsidiary of the Company, acquired structural tbe division of EVRAZ Oregon
Steel, in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015. Summary of assets acquired and the acquisition cost of business transfer were as
follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Current assets ¥ 936 $ 7,792

k Non-current assets k ' 'k k 4,264 o 35,478
Goodwill 1,007 8,382
Net cash used for the business rransfer ¥6,207 $51,652
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Short-term investments and investments in securities held by the Group for which market quotations are available wete

summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

Acquisition Gross Gross Carrying amount

March 31, 2015 cost unrealized gains unrealized losses (fair value)
Equity securities ¥24.916 ¥19,158 ¥ (54) ¥44,020
Bonds and debentures 19,553 144 (122) 19,575
Others 23,656 18 - 23,674
¥68,125 ¥19,320 ¥(176) ¥87,269

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Acquisition Gross Gross Carrying amount

March 31, 2015 cost unrealized gains unrealized losses {fair value}
Equity securities $207,338 $159,424 $ (451) $366,311
Bonds and debentures 162,709 1,199 (1,012) 162,896
Orthers 196,858 150 - 197,008
$566,905 $160,773 $(1,463) $726,215

Millions of yen

Acquisition Gross Gross Carrying amount

March 31, 2014 cost unrealized gains unrealized losses {fair value)
Equity securities ¥29,106 ¥12,536 ¥(537) ¥4kl,105’
Bonds and debentures 17,558 104 (102) 17,560
Others 20,378 - - 20,378

¥67,042 ¥12,640 ¥(639) ¥79,043

The information of available-for-sale securities which were sold was as follows:

Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2015 Proceeds Realized gains Realized loss
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ¥5,042 ¥817 ¥
Total ¥5,042 ¥817 ¥
Thousands of U.S. dollars
For the year ended March 31, 2015 Proceeds Realized gains Realized loss
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities $41,959 $6,798 $-
Total $41,959 $6,798 $-
Millions of yen
For the year ended March 31, 2014 Proceeds Realized gains Realized loss
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities ' ¥2,145 ¥286 ¥(9)
Total ¥2,145 ¥286 ¥(9)
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7. Trade Notes
Trade notes receivable due at the end of the fiscal year were treated as settled on the date of maturity.
Trade notes receivable due at the end of the year at March 31, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2015 2014 2415
Trade notes receivable ' ¥7R7 ¥ 56,130
Cerrain consolidated subsidiaries used February year-end amount.
8. Inventories
Inventories at March 31, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following:
‘Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2015 2014 2015
Finished goods, including merchandise ’ ¥10,566 ¥ 9,351 % 87,929
Raw materials and supplies 19,4086 15,898 101,487
Total ¥29.972 ¥25,249 $249.416

9. Loss on Reduction of Property, Plant and Equipment
Under certain conditions, such as exchanges of building and structures for similar kinds and sales and purchases resulting from
expropriation, Japanese tax regulations permit companies to defer the profit arising from such transactions by reducing the cost
of the assets acquired or by providing a special reserve in the equity section.

The Company has chosen direct reduction entry; therefore, the amount directly deducted from the acquisition cost of
property, plant and equipments at March 31, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

Thousands of

Miilions of yen U.S. dollars

2015 2014 2015

Buildings and structures Fe ¥1,771 k &~
Machinery and equipment - 1,318 k -
Total ¥ ¥3,089 G

10. Short-term Bank Loans and Long-term Debt
"The annual average interest rate applicable to the short-term bank loans was 0.90% for the year ended March 31, 2015.
Long-term debt at March 31, 2015 was as follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Loans from banks ; ’ ¥14,183 $118,021
Less current portion with annual average interest rate of 1.85% (2,913) (24,238)
Long-term debt, less current portion, due 2016 serially to 2021
with annual average interest rate of 1.86% ¥11,270 § 93,783
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Annual maturities of long-term debt at March 31, 2015, were as follows:

PUBLIC

Thousands of
Year ending March 31 Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2016 ¥ 2913 $ 24,238
2017 2,823 23,488
2018 2,415 20,096
2019 2,254 18,757
2020 1,865 15,520
2021 and thereafter 1,913 15,922
Toral ¥14,183 $118,021

in
&
=
@
£
7
&
19
o
vy
e
(¥
c
1]
e
L
o
[
&
o8
=
B~
Wy
ot
i<
L
o
<
et
o
s
wy
3
2
5}
zZ

A

11. Assets Pledged as Collateral

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral for short-term bank loans of ¥42 million ($347 thousand) and ¥106 million
as well as long-term bank loans of ¥6 million ($47 thousand) and ¥47 million at March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, were as

follows:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2015 2014 2015

Cash and bank deposits ¥ o ¥ 368 &
Trade notes and accounts receivable - 1,029 -
Finished goods, including merchandise - 225 -

Raw materials and supplies 525

Buildings and structures G 92 54
Machinery and equipment - 325 -
Land 31 364 261
Other 151 -
Total ¥57 ¥3,079 2315

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral which have no corresponding obligation at March 31, 2015 and 2014 were

as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2815 2014 20515
Cash and bank deposits % 154 ¥ % 1.280
Trade notes and accounts receivable 1,512 ' k - 12,579
Finished goods, including merchandise 309 - 2571
Raw materials and supplies 954 - 7942
Buildings and structures 89 - TR
Machinery and equipment 743 - 6,184
Land 388 - 3,228
Other &35 - 5,283
Toral ¥4.784 ¥ $39,806
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The Group has lump-sum severance payment plans and contributory benefit pension plans as severance benefit plans.

The Company has a cash balance plan as a defined benefit pension plan. Certain foreign consolidated subsidiaries have a

defined contribution pension plan.

In addition, for defined benefit corporate pension plans and lump-sum severance indemnity plans used by certain

consolidated subsidiaries, net defined benefit liability and retirement benefit costs are calculated by the simplified method.

A. Defined benefit plans

(i) Reconciliation of projected benefit obligations at the beginning and the end of the fiscal year (except for the plan which

applies the simplified method)

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2015 2014 015

Balance at beginning of year ¥3.609 ¥3,637 536,931
Cumulative effects of changes in accounting policies {334} - {2,779}
Restated balance 3,275 3,637 iy
Service costs 220 192 §,§$§§}
Interest costs 28 49 ’ 230
Actuarial differences 131 37) 1,093
Benefits paid {234} (232) {1,951}
Others @ 0 (26)
Balance at end of year ¥3,416 ¥3,609 $38,428

(ii) Reconciliation of plan assets at the beginning and the end of the fiscal year (except for the plan which applies the simplified

method)

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2015 2014 2015

Balance at beginning of year ’ ¥1,599 ¥1,585 ‘ﬁﬁgﬁ@?

Expected return on plan assets 27 26 22
Actuarial difference§ o {2} @ as) ‘

Employer contributions 11y 117 990

Benefits paid {124} (122) {1,029

Orthers 2 0 16

Balance at end of year ¥1,621 ¥1,599 %13,486

(iif) Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability at the beginning and the end of the year based on simplified method

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2815 2014 2015

Balance at beginning of year ¥1,395 ¥1,322 $11,611
Net pension expense o 167 167 B é}i‘??i
 Benefits paid - ' a77) (94) (1,472)
Balance at end of year ¥1.325 ¥1,395 511,031
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(iv) Projected benefit obligation and plan assets at end of year and reconciliation of net defined benefit liability and net defined

benefit asset recognized in the consolidated balance sheet

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2815 2014 2615
Funded projected benefit obligations ¥3,809 ¥4,008 331,699
Plan assets {1,822 (1,812) {15,164}
1.987 2,196 15,538
Unfunded projected benefit obligations 1354 1,209 9,434
Net amount of liability and asset recognized in consolidated balance sheet 3,121 3,405 23,973
Net defined benefit liability 3,121 3,405 38,973
Ner defined benefit asset - - -
Net amount of liability and asset recognized in consolidated balance sheet ¥3,121 ¥3.405 823,473
Note: The above included the plan which applies the simplified methed.
(v) Net pension expense and its breakdown
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2015 2014 2015
Service costs ¥220 ¥192 51,830
Interest costs 28 49 230
Expected return on plan assets {26 (26) {230
Amortization of net actuarial differences 73 158 HUE
Retirement benefit costs calculated based on simplified method 147 167 #92
Net pension expense Y462 ¥540 £3,340
(vi) Remeasurements of defined benefit plans on other comprehensive income
‘The components of items recognized in remeasurements of defined benefit plans (pre-tax) were as follows:
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2015 2014 2015
Actuarial differences Y60} ¥ S{503)
(vii} Remeasurements of defined benefit plans on accumulated other comprehensive income
The components of items recognized in remeasurements of defined benefit plans (pre-tax) were as follows:
‘Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2018 2014 2015
Unrecognized actuarial differences ¥159 ¥99 £1,324
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(viii) Plan assets
(a) Percentage by major category of plans assets was as follows:

2015 2014

Insurance assets (general account) 100.006% 100.00%

(b) Determination procedure of long-term expected rate of return on plan assets
In determining long-term expected rate of return on plan assets, the Group considers the current and projected asset allocations,
as well as current and furure long-term rate of returns for various categories of the plan assets.

(ix) Basis for calculation of actuarial assumptions

2015 2014
Discount rates - ' 0.60% 1.50%
Long-term expected rate of return on plan assets 1.60% 1.60%

B. Defined contribution pension plans
The amount to be paid by consolidated subsidiaries to the defined contribution pension plans was ¥127 million ($1,056
thousand} and ¥117 million for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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13.Income Taxes
The Company is subject to 2 number of different taxes based on income, which are corporation tax, inhabitant tax and enterprise
tax.
The aggregate statutory tax rate on income before income taxes was approximately 35.4% and 37.8% for the years ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
“The significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2015 2014 2015

Deferred tax assets:
Unrealized gain on inventories ¥ 244 ¥ 307 : % 2,830
Enterprise tax payable 223 297 1,857
Accrued bonuses to employees 283 310 2,358
Net defined benefit liability $A4 1,164 77
Accumulated depreciation 57 21 471
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 1,387 114 11,542
Losses on devaluation of short-term investments and investments

in securities 481 553 4,006
Tax loss carryforwards 1,905 1,212 15,851
Orther 1,280 1,150 16,652
Less valuation allowance {4,04%) (2,329) {33,642}
Total gross deferred tax assets ¥ 2,751 ¥ 2,799 £ 22,896
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unréalized holding gains on available-for-sale securitieé 59145 4,087 49,255
Deferred gain on property, plant and equipment 354 373 2.943
Depreciation expensés of U.S. subsidiary 0% 304 4,238
Reserve for special depreciation 728 395 6,860
Other 425 382 3,568
Total gross deferred tax liabilities ¥ 7836 ¥ 5,541 % 56,044
Net deferred tax liabilities ¥{5,18%; ¥(2,742) 5{43,14%)

The deferred tax assets and liabilities of the consolidated subsidiary in a different rax jurisdiction are presented without offset on
the accompanying consolidated balance sheets in accordance with Japanese accounting practice.

A reconciliation between the statutory tax rate and the actual effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 is as
follows:

20515 2014
Statutory tax rate 35.4% ~%
Increase in valuation allowance 2.8 -
Tax rate differences of overseas subsidiaries 3.1 -
Other 1.4 -
Effective tax rate 47 8% %

The note for the year ended March 31, 2014 was omitted, because the difference between the statutory tax rate and the actual
effective tax rate was less than or equal to 5% of the statutory tax rate.
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(Revisions to amounts of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities due to change in rate of income taxes)

On March 31, 2015, “Partial Amendment of the Income Tax Act” and “Partial Amendment of the Local Tax Law” were
promulgated. Accordingly, for temporary differences expected to be reversed in the fiscal year beginning on April 1, 2015, the
effective tax rate applied to the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities for this fiscal year, will be lowered from 35.4% in
previous fiscal year to 32.8% for those expected to be collected or paid during the period from April 1, 2015 to March 31, 2016,
and to 32.1% for those expected to be collected or paid on and after April 1, 2016, respectively.

As a result, the amount of deferred tax liabilities (after deducting deferred rax assets) decreased by ¥568 million ($4,728
thousand), while income taxes-deferred increased by ¥44 million ($369 thousand), unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale
securities increased by ¥608 million ($5,059 thousand) and remeasurements of defined benefic plans increased by ¥4 million
($37 thousand) in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

14, Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures

{1) Policy for financial instruments

Regarding fund operations, the Group invests in short-term deposits and low-risk financial assets. Derivatives are used, not for
speculative purposes, but to manage exposure to foreign currency exchange risk.

{2) Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments and its risk management

Receivables such as trade notes and accounts receivable are exposed to customer credit risk. The Group manages its credit risk
from receivables on the basis of internal credit exposure management guidelines, which include monitoring of payment term and
balances of each customer to identify the default risk of customers on a routine basis.

Short-term investments and investments in securities, mainly consisting of equity or debt securities of customers and
suppliers of the Group, are exposed to the risk of market price fluctuations. The fair value of those is recognized on a routine
basis and reported to the Board of Directors.

Payment terms of most payables, such as trade notes and accounts payable, are less than one year.

‘The objectives of short-term bank loans and long-term debt are mainly to raise necessary fund for working fund and capiral
expenditures, respectively. The majority of loans are short-term bank loans with low interest rate flucruarion risk or fixed rate
long-term debt.

“The derivative transactions are conducted and managed in accordance with a company regulation which dictates rules for
items including authorities and transaction amount limication.

While receivables and debt loan are exposed to liquidity risk, the Group manages the risk through measures such as a
monthly financial planning.

(a) Fair value of financial instruments

Millions of yen

March 31, 2015 Carrying amount Fair value Unrealized gain/loss
(1) Cash and bank deposits ¥ 61,312 ¥ 61,312 ; ; ¥ -
(2) Trade notes and accounts receivable ) k 34,977 34,977 -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (29) (29) -

34,948 34,948 -
(3) Short-term investments and Investments in securities 87,269 87,269 -
Total ¥183,529 ¥183,529 ¥ -
(1) Trade notes and accounts payéble ’ k ¥ 24,489 ¥ 24,489 ¥ -
(2) Short-term bank loans 7,652 7,652 -
(3) Long-term debt 14,183 14,793 610
Total ¥ 46,324 ¥ 46,934 ¥610
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

March 31, 2015 Carrying amount Fair value Unrealized gain/loss
(1) Cash and bank deposits $ 510,209 $ 510,209 $ -
(2) Trade notes and accounts receivable 291,062 291,062 -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (238) (238) -
290,824 290,824 -
(3) Short-term ihvéstments and Investments in securities 726,215 726,215 -
Total $1,527,248 $1,527,248 5 -
(1) Trade notes and accoﬁnts 'payable $ 203,788 $ 203,788 $ -
(2) Short-term bank loans 63,680 63,680 -
(3) Long-term debt 118,021 123,098 5,077
Total $ 385,489 $ 390,566 $5,077
Millions of yen
March 31, 2014 Carrying amount Fair value Unrealized gain/loss
(1) Cash and bank deposits ¥ 63,921 ¥ 63,921 ¥ -
(2) Trade notes and accounts receivable 33,098 33,098 -
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (252) (252) -
32,846 32,846 -
(3) Short-term investments and Investments in securities 79,043 79,043 -
Toral ¥175,810 ¥175,810 ¥ -
(1) Trade notes and accounts payable ¥ 19,625 ¥ 19,625 ¥ -
(2) Short-term bank loans k 5,273 5,273 -
(3) Long-term debt 14,110 13,955 (155)
Total ¥ 39,008 ¥ 38,853 ¥(153)
Assets

{1) Cash and bank deposits and (2) Trade notes and accounts receivable

“The carrying amounts of cash and bank deposits and trade notes and accounts receivable approximate fair value because of their

short maturities.

(3) Short-term investments and Investments in securities

The fair values of short-term investments and investments in securities are determined using the quoted price at the stock
exchange for the equity instruments, and at the quoted price obrained from the financial institution for certain debt instruments.

The carrying amounts of certificate of deposit approximate fair value because of their short maturities. The information of the
fair value for short-term investments and investments in securities by classification is included in Note 6.

Liabilities

(1) Trade notes and accounts payable and (2) Short-term bank loans
The carrying amounts of trade notes and accounts payable and short-term bank loans approximate fair value because of their

short maturities.

(3) Long-term debt

The carrying amounts of variable rate long-term debrt approximate fair value because the interest payment is linked to the market
interest rate. The fair values of fixed rate long-term debt were calculated by discounting the cash flows related to the amount of
principal and interest at the borrowing rate assuming that the Company group receives loans under the same agreements.

Derivatives

As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no derivative transactions regardless of the application of hedge accounting.
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(b) Financial instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably determined

Carrying amount

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2015 2014 2015
Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market ¥O.677 ¥9,191 58,527

Impairment loss on unquoted equity securities for the year ended March 31, 2014 was ¥363 million.
Impairment loss on unquoted equity securities for the year ended March 31, 2015 was not recognized.

{c) Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities

Millions of yen

March 31, 2015

Due in one year or less

Due after one year
through five years

Due after five years
through ten years

Due after ten years

Cash and bank deposits ¥ 61,312 ¥ - ¥ - ¥
Trade notes and accounts receivable 34,977 — - -
Short-term investments and investments
in securities with contractual maturities
Available-for-sale:
Debentures - 8,935 10,640 -
Others 23,157 - - -
Toral ¥119,446 ¥8,935 ¥10,640 ¥

Thousands of U.S. dollars

March 31, 2015

Due in one year or less

Due after one year
through five years

Due after five years
through ten years

Due after ten years

Cash and bank deposits $510,209 k $ - $ - $-
Trade notes and accounts reéeivable 291,062 - - o
Short-term investments and investments

in securities with contractual maturities

Available-for-sale:

Debentures - 74,355 88,541 -

Others 192,702 - = -
Total $993,973 $74,355 $88,541 $—

Millions of yen

March 31, 2014

Due in one year or less

Due after one year
through five years

Due after five years
through ten years

Due after ten years

Cash and bank deposits ¥ 63,921 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Trade notes and accounts receivable 33,098 - - -
Short-term investments and investments

in securities with contractual maturiries

Available-for-sale:

Debentures 304 3,465 13,380 412

Others 20,379 - - -
Total ¥117,702 ¥3,465 ¥13,380 ¥412
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15. Seiling, General and Administrative Expenses

pid

Major components of selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2015 2014 2815

Shipping charges ' ¥5,918 ¥5,510 k $49,247
Salaries and allowances 2,039 1,924 16,971
Retirement benefit costs 159 194 1,320
Provision for bonuses to employees 330 325 2,795
Provision for bonuses to directors 834 77 663

16 impalmment loss

For the year ended March 31, 2015

The Group recorded the following impairment loss related to the consolidated subsidiaries, Maruichi Leavite Pipe & Tube
Company LLC and Maruichi Sun Steel Joint Stock Company. In principle, the Group conducts grouping of assets based on the
reportable segment in consideration of the category used in management accounting, except for idle assets not being used for

business purpose which are grouped by individual asset.
(1) Maruichi Leavite Pipe & Tube Company LLC

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Construction in progress ¥1,319 $10,982

These assets were reviewed for impairment loss in accordance with the U.S. GAAP. Since the originally expected return was
found to be difficult to achieve, the carrying values of thesc assets were written down to the net recoverable value and related
losses were recognized as impairment loss.

" Recoverable amount was measured by net selling value which was calculated by disposal value.

(2) Maruichi Sun Steel Joint Stock Company

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Buildings and structures ; ¥ 741 $ 6,166
Machinery and equipment 3,052 25,395
Goodwill 246 2,047
Total ¥4,039 $33,608

For building and structures as well as machinery and equipment, the originally expected returns were found to be difficult to
achieve, while for goodwill, excess earning power forecasted at the stock acquisition was not expected. Therefore, the carrying
values of these assets were writren down to the net recoverable values and related losses were recognized as impairment loss.
Recoverable amount was measured by value in use and discount rate was 10.0%.

For the year ended March 31, 2014
No impairment loss of property, plant and equipment or other assets were noted.
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17. Contingendcies
(1) As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company had the following contingent liabilities

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2815 2014 2015

Guarantees of bank loans to the Company’s affiliate companies ¥433 $4,113
Trade notes discounted - 52 -
Trade notes endorsed 45 40 371

(2) As of March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company issued letters of awareness on an affiliate’s management support to raise funds.

18. Net Assets

The Company is subject to the Law.

(i) Dividends

'The Companies Act (the “Act”) allows Japanese companies to pay dividends at any time during the fiscal year in addition to the
yearend dividend upon resolution ar the shareholders meeting. The Board of Directors may declare dividends (excepr for
dividends in kind) if the company has prescribed so in its articles of incorporation. The Act permits Japanese companies to
distribute dividends in kind (noncash assets) to shareholders subject ro certain limitations and additional requirements. The Act
also provides certain limitations on the amounts available for dividends and the purchase of treasury stock. The maximum
amount that the Company can distribute as dividends is calculated based on the nonconsolidated financial statements of the
Company in accordance with Japanese laws and regulations.

(ii) Common stock, reserve and surplus

"The Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must be appropriated as a legal reserve (of retained earnings) or as
additional paid-in capiral (of capital surplus) depending on the equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends
until the toral of aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% of the common stock. Under the
Act, the toral amount of additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without the limitation threshold that the
Act provided. The Act also provides that common stock, legal reserve, additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus and
retained earnings can be transferred among accounts under certain conditions upon resolution of the shareholders.

(iif) Treasury stock

The Act provides for Japanese companies to repurchase/dispose of treasury stock just as the Act stipulates. The amount of
treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available for distribution to the shareholders, an amount which is
determined by specific formula.

The movements of outstanding shares and cash dividends during the year ended March 31, 2015 were as follows:

(a) Number of outstanding shares and treasury stock

Balance at Increase during Decrease during Balance at
Type of shares beginning of the year the year the year end of the year
Issued stock:
Common stock 94,000,000 - - 94,000,000
Treasury stock: '
Common stock 9,265,038 5,656 51 9,270,643

00561

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Staterments




T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b} Dividends paid to the shareholders during the year

PUBLIC

Aggregate Amount
Date of resolution Resolution by Type of shares amount per share Date of record Effective date
May 9, 2014 Board of  Common stock ¥4,110 million  ¥48.50 ($0.40) Mar. 31, 2014 Jun. 26, 2014
Directors (334,199
thousand)
Nov. 10, 2014 Board of  Common stock ¥2,118 million ¥25.00 ($0.21) Sep. 30, 2014 Nov. 28, 2014
Directors ($17,628
thousand)

Dividends applicable to the year ended March 31, 2015, but not recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial

statements, since the effective date is subsequent to the fiscal year:

Aggregate

Date of resolution Resolution by Type of shares amount

Amount per
share

Date of record

Effective date

May 12, 2015 Board of  Common stock ¥3,940 million ¥46.50 (50.39)
Direcrors ($32,786
thousand)

Mar. 31, 2015

Jun. 26, 2015

Note: Above cash dividends are distributed from retained earnings.

19. 5tock Options
The stock oprions outstanding as of March 31, 2015 were as follows:

Number of options

.

Vesting conditions

Stock option Persons granted granted Date of grant and service period Exercise period
2005 Stock option 5 directors 7,000 Jul. 7, 2005 No Jul. 8, 2005 —
Jun. 29, 2025

2006 Stock option 7 directors 11,100 Nov. 9, 2006 No Nov. 10, 2006 —
Nov. 9, 2026

2007 Stock option 7 directors 7,100 Sep. 10, 2007 No Sep. 11, 2007 —
Sep. 10, 2027

2008 Stock option 7 directors 7,800 Sep. 10, 2008 No Sep. 11, 2008 —
Sep. 10, 2028

2009 Srock option 6 directors 11,200 Sep. 8, 2009 No Sep. 9, 2009 —
Sep. 8, 2029

2010 Stock option G directors 12,500 Sep. 8, 2010 No Sep. 9, 2010 —
Sep. 8, 2030

2011 Stock option 6 directors 11,700 - Sep. 8, 2011 No Sep. 9, 2011 —
Sep. 8, 2031

2012 Stock option 6 directors 14,000 Sep. 10, 2012 No Sep. 11, 2012 —
Sep. 10, 2032

2013 Stock option 6 directors 10,700 Sep. 9, 2013 No Sep. 10, 2013 —
Sep. 9, 2033

2014 Stock option 6 directors 10,600 Sep. 8, 2014 No Sep. 9, 2014 —
Sep. 8, 2034
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The stock option activity was as follows:

2005 Stock 2006 Stock 2007 Stock 2008 Stock 2009 Stock 2010 Stock 2011 Stock 2012 Stock 2013 Stock 2014 Stock

option option option option option option option option option option
(Non-vested)
March 31, 2014 - - . - - _ - _ - .
Granted - - - - - - _ - ~ 10,600
Forfeited - - - - - - - - - -
Vested - - - - - - - - - 10,600
March 31, 2015 - - - - - - - _ _ _
(Vested)
March 31, 2014 4,000 6,400 3,900 4,700 8,600 10,700 10,000 14,000 10,700 -
Vested - - - - - - - - - 10,600
Exercised - - - - — - - - - -
Forfeited - - - - - - - - - -
March 31, 2015 4,000 6,400 3,900 4,700 8,600 10,700 10,000 14,000 10,700 10,600
Exercise price ¥1 ¥1 ¥1 ¥1 ¥1 ¥1 ¥1 ¥1 ¥1 ¥1
Average stock price at exercise - - - - - - - - - -
Fair value price at grant date ~-  ¥2281 ¥2416 ¥2.431 ¥1,383 ¥1,391 ¥1,327 ¥1,188 ¥1,866 ¥2,135

($18.98) ($20.10) ($20.23) ($11.51) ($11.58) ($11.04) ($9.89) ($15.53) ($17.77)

The assumptions used to measure fair value of 2014 Stock option are as follows:

Estimation method: Black-Scholes option pricing model
Volatility of stock price: 27.7 %

Estimated remaining outstanding period: 10 years

Estimated dividend: ¥73.50 ($0.61) per share

Interest rate with risk free: 0.55 %

20. Research and Development Cost
‘The amounts of costs for the research and development activities of the Group for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
were ¥143 million ($1,189 thousand) and ¥135 million, respectively.

]
“
c

Q

£

g
3

o
=
wy
s

&

£

1
=
e
=~

@
9
i)
2
°

wy

2

S
L

@
L
=
2

Wy
2

o
z

00563



PUBLIC

2t Comprehensive income
Reclassification adjustments and tax effect amounts of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2015 and

2014 were as follows:
Thousands of

Milfions of yen U.S. dollars
2815 2014 2415
Unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale securiries
Amount for the year ¥7,861 ¥5,850
Reclassification adjustment {817} 277) {6,797}
Amount before tax effect 7144 5,573 59,447
Tax effect amount {1.830) (1,825) {15,224
Unrealized holding gains on avaiiable—for;sale securities ; 5,314 3,748

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Amount for the year 5,451 4,404 28,716
Foreign currency translation adjustments 3,451 4,404 28,716
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans
Amount for the year’ ’ {133} - {1,119
Reclassification adjustment 73 - - 408
Amount before tax effect (B} - (50
Tax effect amount 21 - 178
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (3% - {3243
Share of other comprehensive income of affiliates and subsidiaries ‘ k
accounted for using equity method
Amount for the year 572 960 4,755
Share of other comprehensive income of affiliates and subsidiaries
accounted for using equity method 572 960 4,755
Total other comprehensive income ¥9,298 ¥9,112 :
22. Consolidated Subsidiaries
The Company’s consolidated subsidiaries were as follows:
Name Ownership Intevest Country of Incorporation
Maruichi Kohan Ltd. 91.1% Japan
Hokkaido Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd. 100.0% Japan
Shikoku Maruichi Steel Tube Lid. 100.0% k ’ Japan
2 Kyushu Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd. 100.0% Japan
£ Alpha Metal Co., Led. 93.5% Japan
& Maruichi American Corporation 61.0% United States of America
E MKK USA Inc. 100.0% United States of America
‘é Maruichi Leavite Pipe & Tube Company LLC k ’ 74.7% United States of America
L—é Maruichimex S.A. de C.V. 60.0% Mexico
g Maruichi Oregon Steel Tube, LLC 100.0% United States of America
g Maruichi Sun Steel Joint Stock Company 72.5% Vietnam
é Maruichi Sun Steel (Hanoi) Company Limited N ; 100.0% Vietnam
% Maruichi Kuma Steel Tube Private Limited 70.0% India
g From the year ended March 31, 2015, Maruichimex S.A. de C.V. has been newly included in the scope of consolidation due to
z

increase in materiality. Maruichi Oregon Steel Tube LLC, a newly established company during the year ended March 31, 2015,
has been included in the scope of consolidation because it has a material impact to the consolidated financial statements.
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23. Segment Information
(1) Description of reportable segments
The Group’s reportable segments are those for which separate financial information is available and regular evaluation by the
Boards of Directors and corporate officers is being performed in order to decide how resources are allocated among the
Company’s group. The Group produces and sells mainly steel tubes, steel sheet coating, and so forth. The Company, domestic
consolidated subsidiaries and overseas subsidiaries operate those businesses based on the regional comprehensive strategy
designed by each company in each location.

Therefore, the Group’s reportable segments consist of “Japan
and sales structure.

The principal products of each reportable segment are as follows.
(Japan)

Welded steel tubes for machine structure, construction and piping, hot dip galvanized steel sheet, lighting poles, etc.

»

North America” and “Asia” based on the regional production

(North America)
Welded steel tubes for machine structure, construction and piping, hot dip galvanized steel sheet, etc.

(Asia)
Welded steel tubes for machine structure, construction and piping, hot dip galvanized steel sheet, pre-painted steel sheet, etc.

(2) Methods of measurement for sales, profit {loss), assets, liabilities and other items of each reportable segment
Methods of measurement for sales, profit (loss), assets, liabilities and other items for each reportable segment is mainly equal to
“2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.” Intersegment sales or transfers are based on current marker prices.

(3) Information regarding sales, profit (loss), assets, liabilities and other items of each reportable segment was
as follows:

Millions of yen

Reportable segment

For the year ended March 31, 2015 Japan A;:I;:: Asia Total Reconciliations  Consolidated
Sales: ;

Sales to external customers ~ ¥100,172 ¥21,68"4’ ¥30,812 ¥1’52,668k ¥ - ¥152,668

Intersegment sales or transfers 1,032 - - 1,032 (1,032) -
Tortal 101,204 21,684 30,812 153,700 (1,032) 152,668
Segment profit (loss) ¥ 17,906 ¥ (223) ¥ (46) ¥ 17,637 ¥97 ¥ 17,734
Segment assets ¥101,808 ¥26,043 ¥29,913 ¥157,764 ¥163,688 ¥321,452
Other:

Depreciation ¥ 2,700 ¥ 1,004 ¥ 2,312 ¥ 6,016 ¥ - ¥ 6,016

Amortization of goodwill 6 - 71 77 - 77

Increase in property plant and equipment

and intangible assets 5,108 6,978 1,975 14,0061 - 14,061

00565

2
=
@
&
&
&
)
%]
5
v}
&
]
=
i
o
@
a
7
=
2
e
o
2
o
£
e
0
2
Uy
g
o
]
z




PUBLIC

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Reportable segment

For the year ended March 31, 2015 Japan A::;—rli Asia Toral Reconciliations Consolidared
Sales:
Sales to external customers $833,583 $180,447 $256,405 $1,270,435 § -~ $1,270,435
Intersegment sales or transfers 8,589 - - 8,589 (8,589) -
Toral 842,172 180,447 256,405 1,279,024 (8,589) 1,270,435
Segment profit (loss) $149,004 $ (1,857) $ (378) $ 146,769 § 809 $ 147,578
Segment assets $847,201 $216,719 $248,916  $1,312,836  $1,362,142  $2,674,978
Other:
Depreciation $ 22,470 $ 8,352 $ 19,242 § 50,064 $ - & 50,064
Amortization of goodwill 52 - 585 637 - 637
Increase in property plant and equipment
and intangible assets 42,503 58,069 16,436 117,008 - 117,008
Millions of yen
Reportable segment
North
For the year ended March 31, 2014 Japan America Asia Total Reconciliations Consolidated
Sales:
Sales to exrernal customers ¥96,425 ¥17,366 ¥22,757 ¥136,548 ¥ - ¥136,548
Intersegment sales or transfers 578 - - 578 (578) -
Toral 97,003 17,366 22,757 137,126 (578) 136,548
Segment profit ¥19,029 ¥ 380 ¥ 578 ¥ 19,987 ¥ 93 ¥ 20,080
Segment assets ¥96,042 ¥15,672 ¥31,411 ¥143,125 ¥157,357 ¥300,482
Other:
Depreciation ¥ 2,734 ¥ 839 ¥ 1,624 ¥ 5,197 ¥ - ¥ 5,197
Amortization of goodwill 80 - 22 102 - 102
Increase in property plant and equipment
and intangible assets 6,048 1,299 2,705 10,052 - 10,052
{4) Related information
(a) Information by goods and services
Millions of yen
For the year ended March 31, 2015 Steel tube Steel sheet coating Others Total
a Sales to external customers ¥118,011 ¥27,409 ¥7,248 ¥152,668
5
g Thousands of U.S. dollars
% For the year ended March 31, 2015 Steel tube Steel sheet coating Others Total
=
g
,"; Sales to external customers $982,038 $228,082 $60,315 $1,270,435
g
;é Millions of yen
é For the year ended March 31, 2014 Steel tube Steel sheet coating Others Total
2
g Sales to external customers ¥109,005 ¥19,812 ¥7,731 ¥136,548
§
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(b) Information by region

Sales

Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2015 Japan North America Asia - Oceania Others Total
Sales based on customer’s location ¥97;778 ' ¥23,571 ’ ¥30,308 ¥1,0’1k1 k ¥152,668
Thousands of U.S. dollars

For the year ended March 31, 2015 Japan North America Asia - Oceania Others Total
Sales based on customer’s location k $813,667 $196,147 $252,207 $8,414 $1,270,435
Millions of yen

For the year ended March 31, 2014 Japan North America Asia - Oceania Others Total
Sales based on customer’s location ¥93,830 ¥19,196 ¥23,097 ¥425 ¥136,548

Property, plant and equipment
Millions of yen
March 31, 2015 Japan North America Asia Total

Property, plant and equipment ¥55,146 ¥14,925 ¥17,195 ¥87,266

Thousands of U.S. doliars
March 31, 2015 Japan North America Asia Total

Property, plant and equipment $458,900 $124,203 $143,087 $726,190

. Millions of yen
March 31, 2014 Japan North America Asia Total

Property, plant and equipment ¥52,843 ¥9,219 ¥19,572 ¥81,634

{c) Information by principal customers
Of the sales to external customers, there are no customers to whom the sales exceed 10% of the net sales on the consolidated
statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, therefore, this informarion is omitted.

{5} Information about impairment loss of property, plant and equipment by reportable segment
For the year ended March 31, 2015
Millions of yen
March 31, 2015 Japan North America Asia Total

Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment ’ ¥ ¥1,319 ) ¥4,039 ' ¥5,358

Thousands of U.S. dollars
March 31, 2015 Japan North America Asia Total

Impairment loss of property, plant and equipment $- $10,982 $33,608 $44,590
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For the year ended March 31, 2014
No impairment loss of property, plant and equipment by reportable segment were noted.
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{6) Information about amortization and unamortized balance of goodwill by reportable segment
Millions of yen

Elimination/
March 31, 2
March 31, 2015 Japan North America Asia Corporate Total

Balance at end of the year ¥4 ¥1,007 ¥ ¥ ¥1,011

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Elimination/
% ) .
March 31, 2015 Japan North America Asia Corporate Total

Balance at end of the year $33 $8,382 $- $- $8,415

Millions of yen

’ Elimination/
March 31, 2014 Japan North America Asia Corporate Total

Balance at end of the year ¥10 ¥ ¥315 ¥ ¥325

»

Note: Information about amortization of goodwill is omitted since similar information is disclosed in Note 23 “Segment Information (3).

24, Business Combinations
Maruichi Oregon Steel Tube, LLC, a consolidated subsidiary of the Company, acquired structural tube division of EVRAZ
Oregon Steel, a subsidiary of EVRAZ Inc. NA in Portland, Oregon, the United States.
{1) Outline of the transactions
(a) Name and business of acquired company
Acquired company: Evraz Oregon Steel
Line of business: Structural tube division
(b) Main reasons for the business combination
Maruichi American Corporation, a subsidiary of the Company in Los Angeles, has been supplying steel tube in the
Northwest region of the United States. This acquisition will enable the Company to offer better services in this market
including Canada.
(c) Date of business combination
March 5, 2015
(d) Legal form of the business combination
Business transfer by cash
(e) Name of the entity after the business combination
Maruichi Oregon Steel Tube, LLC
(f) Main reason for deciding on the acquiring company
Business transfer by cash

(2) Period of acquired company’s financial results included in the consolidated statements
The balance sheet as of March 5, 2015, when the business combination was completed, was included in consolidation.

(3) Acquisition cost of the acquired company

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. doltars

Consideration for acquisition (cash) ¥6,207 $51,652
Expenses directly related to acquisition - -
Acquisition cost ¥6,207 $51,652
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{4) Amount of goodwill, reason for recognizing goodwill, amortization method and amortization period
(a) Amount of goodwill
¥1,007 million ($8,382 thousand)
(b) Reason for recognizing goodwill
Goodwill was recognized based on future excess earning power expected with the future business development.
(¢) Method and term to amortize goodwill
Straight-line method over 10 years

{5) Amounts of assets acquired as of the date of the business combination

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Current assets ’ ’ ¥ 936 ) $ 7,792
Long-term assets 4,264 35,478
Total assets ¥5,200 $43,270

{6) Amounts allocated to intangible assets other than goodwill, their breakdown by major category, and
weighted average amortization period by total and major category

Thousands of Weighted average
Category Millions of yen U.S. dollars amortization period
Assets related to the customers ¥603 $5,016 15 years
Others 60 501 8 years
Total ¥663 $5,517 14 years

(7) Estimated amounts and their calculation method of impact on the consolidated statements of income for
the year ended March 31, 2015, assuming that the business combinations had been completed on the
commencement date of the fiscal year

The Company is not estimating the impact as obtaining any of information required to calculate from the beginning of the

current fiscal year is impracticable since the Company acquired only a part of business.

25. Subsequent Events
Resolution of dividends
At the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on May 12, 2015, the following appropriations were resolved:

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
Cash dividends of ¥46.50 ($0.39) per share ¥3,940 $32,786
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@irectory {As of March 31, 2013)

faruichi Steel Tubs Lid,

sicad Office: e Maruichi American Corporation (MAD
9-10, 3 Chome, Kithorie, Nishi-ku, Osaka 350-0014, Japan *Head Office:
Tel: +81-6-6531-0101 11529 Greenstone Avenue, Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670-4697, U.5.A.
*Sapporo Office: Tel: +1-562-903-8600
151-5, Kyoei, Kita-hiroshima, Hokkaido 061-1112, Japan
Tel: +81-11-372-3136 Maruichi Leavitt Pipe & Tubse, LLC (Leavity
*Tokyo Och: S . bashi. Chuo-ki | *Head Office:
3F Yaesu Dai Building, 1-1, 1 Chome, Kyobashi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 1717 W, 115th Street, Chicago, Hlinois, 60643, U.S.A.
O3 Japan Tel: +1-773-239-7700
el +81-3-3272-537
*Nagoya Office: Bmrridehi o Tk PR .
2-4, 1 Chome, Chitose, Atsuta-ku, Nagoya 456-0054, Japan Maruichi Oregon Steel Tube, LLCIMOST)
Tel: +81-52-651-7221 *Head Office: i
*QOsaka Office: 8735 North Harborgate Streer, Portland, Oregon, 97203-6363, U.S.A.
3-22, 2 Chome, lrachibori, Nishi-ku, Osaka 350-0012, Japan Tel: +1-503-737-1200
Tel: +81-6-6532-3461 i
*Hiroshima Office: MARUICHIMEX 5.4, de OV, [Maruichimesg
3-72, Minami-myojinmachi, Kaita-cho, Aki-gun, Hiroshima eHead Office:
736-0055, Japan Circuito Japon 112, Parque Industrial San Francisco San Francisco de Los
TEI:‘+81{8268;{:1-1 901 Romo, Aguascalientes, C.P.20304, Mexico
*Fuloka Office: Tel: +52-449-910-7046
12F Nihonseimei Building, 2-1, 3 Chome, Hakata-ckimae, ’ ’
’}rle?kiglkéljiullau?gi ?IMOI 1, Japan ﬁi;;%m?%m% Mexdco 5.4, de (Y. (Alphamex]
’ - - *Hcad Office:
*Tokyo Plant: Municipio De Tempezala 112, Parque industonal Def Valle De Aguascalientes,
11, 1 Chome, Shishama, Ichikawa, Chiba 272-0127, Japan San F{ancm,co Qf LOf Rowme, Aguascalientes, C.F 20358, Mexico
Tel: +81-47-395-1201 Tel: +52-449-153-0301
*Nagoya Plant: s s . . ; o
14, Kanaoka, Tobishima-mura, Ama-gun, Aichi 490-14453, Japan g@ﬁ?’ﬁ%%@i gi}ﬁ gié@%% j%?”’%? Stork ii}mgﬁaﬁ‘;f {giﬁ\éi&{:@}
Tel: +81-567-55-1101 *Head Office:
*Sakai Plane: DT743 Rd., Dong Tac Quarter, Tan Dong Hiep Ward, Di An County, Binh
16, Ishizu-nishimachi, Nishi-ku, Sakai, Osaka 592-8332, Japan Duong Province, Vietnam
Tel: +81-72-241-0301 Tel: +84-650-3742777
*Osaka Plant:
3-2, 7 Chome, K:lmHﬂgaShi, Hirano-ku, Osaka 547—0002,]3})&&1 Mlaruich Sun Sisel g%gﬁﬁﬁ} {:@g%%}aﬁf&; Pimited
Tel: +81-6-6791-5551 Herd Officar it
*Takuma Plant: . N . . o Tieeien Ut ) T
6883, Takuma, Takuma-cho, Mitoyo, Kagawa 769-1101, Japan %é;%l;)gkxyﬂxl{r;(;gs;g;;Zone, Binh Xuyen District, Vinh Phuc Province, Viemam
Tel: +81-875-83-3301 ’ e
sSakai Pole Plant: . - . .
125, 2 Cho, Ishihara-cho, Higashi-ku, Sakai, Osaka 599-8102, Japan “§N§§3§§3§ Steal Fips (o, Lud
Tel: +81-72-258-1858 *Head Office:
sKashima Pole Plant: Slope47, Highway5 1, Tam Phuoc, Bien Hoa Ciyy, Dong Nai Province, Vietnam
3075-27, Shimasu, hake, Ibaraki 311-2434, Japan Tel: +84-61-3-511-410
Tel: +81-299-64-6901 R Sehi b | Product (Foshan) Co., Ltd. (MMP
Maruichi Metal Product (Foshan) {o., Ltd. (MMP)
eHead Office:
Hokkaido Marubchi Steel Tube Lid, B ) Huabao Nan Road, Chengxi Industrial Park, Foshan National HI-TECH,
eHead Office and Tomakomai Plant: N Industries Zone, Chancheng District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province,
134-110, Aza Numanohata, Tomakomai, Hokkaido 059-1364, Japan ¥IT~CSIGH§7_“ §710.8558
Tel: +81-144-55-3801 el: +86-757-8210-85
o *Wuhan Branch:
é{%’ﬁ:’i?@ﬁ Maruichi Steal Tube Lid, Ib)fr?“/kl?lil‘lg:z:ll;lln Avenue, Shamao Town, Hannan District, Wuhan City, Hubei
sHead Office: s :
2 ishi a, N -machi, Tamana-gi : . N N . . «
gg’gf”(}f‘f ?’k}zg’j} Nagasu-machi, Tamana-gun, Kumanioto Maruichi Metal Product (Tianjin) Co, L3d. (MMP)
Tel: +81-968-78-3711 sHead Office:
Zhongnan three street, west Tianjin economic development zone area, Tianjin
B - mriiring St 3 City, China
;ﬁé&;}z&égﬁ%zwtmkgwﬁ Tube ltd, » B Tl 86.23-5986-8898
2112-48, Takuma, Takuma-cho, Mitoyo, Kagawa 769-1101, Japan . R gt copyns
Teb +81.875-83-4135 ° PT. Indonesia Steel Tube Works [ISTW)
sTachibana Plant: Jakarta Plant: ) )
12, 2 Cho, Ishihara-cho, Higashi-ku, Sakai 599-8102, Japan JL Rawa Sumur FNo. 1, Kawasan [ndustri Pulogadung, Jakarn 13940, Indonesia
Tel: +81-72-257-5101 ’ Tel: +62-21-460-0991
*Semarang Plant:
Hasuga industry Lid, JL Simongim 105, Semarang, 50148, PO.Box 1034 Jawa-Tengah, Indonesia
.H ‘dk,:b?rV ARt 4 P . P — — . » S Tei: +62"2<)"760'0647
,,el Ch e Kami-higashi, Mirano-ku, Osaka 547-0002. 1z *Cikarang Plant:
3-2,7 ome, fami-higasai, blirano-xu, Usaxa > 17-0002, Japan Greenland [nrernational Industrial Center (GIIC) Block AE No.7 Kora
Tel: +81-6-6791-4912
el +81-0-677R 471 Deltamas Cikarang Pusat Bekasi 17530-WEST JAVA-INDONESIA
Tel: +62-21-565-55621
Maruichi Kohan Ld, ‘
*Head Office: MARUICHI KUNMA STEEL TURE PRIVATE LIMITED (UMA)
= 9-10, 3 Chome, Kitahorie, Nishi-ku, Osaka 550-0014, Japan TMANESAR PLANT:
[« Tel: +81-6-6531-8401 Plot No.27, Sector-2A, IMT Manesar, Gurgaen-122050 (Haryana), India
G N - Tel: +91-124-2291667
g Alpha Metal Co, Lid, - *BANGALORE PLANT:
[a) sHead Office: Toyota Tusho Auto Park. Plot No.338&34.
850, Inamitsu, Miyawaka, Fukuoka 822-0144 Japan Bldadi Industrial Area. Ramanagara Taluk & District. 562-109. India
} P 5
Tel: +81-949-52-3355 Tel: +91-80-46613200
Ohinawa Maruichi Lid,
*Head Office: )

388-3, Ohira, Urazoe, Okinawa 901-2113, Japan
Tel: +81-98-876-1801
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Investor Information

(As of March 31, 2015)

Name of the Company Maruichi Steel Tube Ltd.

Address of

9-10, 3 Chome, Kitahorie,

Major Sharsholders

Number of P age of

Registered Office Nishi-ku, Osaka 550-0014, Japan Sharcholder k ih’arzso :;:;n:li::
Capi[al ¥9,595,152,375 (thousand) issued (96}
Date of Establishment December 18, 1947 JEE Steel Corporation 4337 4.61
Number of Employees 2,057 (Consolidated basis)

Yoshimura Holdings Limited 4,000 4.26
Board of Directors & Auddit & Supervisory Bosd Mamber (As of June 25, 2015)
Hirovuki Suzuki Representative Director, ?:z?xgc;::ic;ﬁdltsul Banking 3,900 4,15

Y } Chairman & CEO o pB Tof
e Bank o
. . Representative Director, . . 3,886 4,13
Yoshinori Yoshimura President & COO Tol{yo’—ertsubslshl‘UF]]; Ltlii.L -
Daiji Horikawa Director J(}[E;irsl[ ;giic)ewwes Ao ME 3081 3.23
Yoshitaka Meguro Director Japan Trustee Services Bank, Led. 3.003 3.19
Kenjiro Nakano Director (JFE Steel trust account) ’ ’
Shozo Suzuki Standing Audit & Supervisory Seiji Yoshimura 2,696 2.87
Board Member
Masuo Okumura Audit & Supervisory Board Member ;Ihe M'istgr Trust Banl of 2,195 2.34
apan, Lid.

Sonoko Matsuo Audit & Supervisory Board Member

NIPPON STEEL & SUMITOMO
Tatsuhiko Yano Audit & Supervisory Board Member METAL CORPORATION 2,000 2.13

CBHK-CHINA STEEL 5
Managing Officers (A of June 25,2015) CORPORATION 2,000 2.13
Hiroyuki Suzuki Chairman Managing Officer & CEO

Yoshinori Yoshimura

President Managing Officer & COO

Daiji Horikawa

Vice President Managing Officer

Yoshitaka Meguro

Senior Managing Officer, Tokyo Office

Teruyuki Horikawa

Senior Managing Officer, Nagoya Office

Yukio Iwasaki Senior Managing, Officer, Tokyo Plant
General Manager,

Shinji Fuji Sakai Point, Osaka Plant & Quality
Assurance Dept.

Keito Nakano General Manager, Business Dept.

Yasuyuki Sakai

General Manager,
Deputy Director of Maruichi Sun Steel
Joint Stock Company

Takeshi Takeuchi

General Manager, Office of the President

Yoichiro Okano

General Manager,
MP Development & ISO Dept.

Minoru Kadono

General Manager,
Equipment Technology Dept.

Yasuo Kawamua

General Manager,
Finance Dept.

Shunsaku Honda

General Manager, Deputy Director of
Maruichi Leavitt Pipe & Tube, LLC

Shinichi Ishimatsu

General Manager, Administration Dept.

Other than the above, the Company possesses 9,270

thousand shares (9.86%) of treasury stock.

Sharsholder Reference Information

Closing Date of Accounts: March 31
Annual General Meeting: Late June

*Record Date:

“The shareholders who should exert the right of

shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders shall be those registered as such with voting

rights in the final register of shareholders as of March 31

every year.

#Stock Exchange:

Tokyo Stock Exchange 1st Section

*Place of Transfer:

Transfer Agent Division

*Media of Public Notice:

Electronic Public Notice at our home page, or Nihon

Keizai Shimbun (daily newspaper)
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{h MARUICHI STEEL TUBE LTD.

http://www.maruichikokan.co.jp/

HEAD OFFICE
9-10, 3 Chome, Kitahorie,
Nishi-ku, Osaka 550-0014, JAPAN
Telephone: +81-6-6531-0101
Facsimile: +81-6-6543-0190

Sl INK

Printed in Japan
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